
 BREAKING THE 

BARRIER 
Annual Report 2024 
Bank of North Dakota 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TABLE OF 
CONTENTS 

Letter from the President .................................................................................... 3 

Lending Portfolio..................................................................................................

................................................................................

......................................................................................

...........................................................................

........................................................................................................

.......................

............................................................................................

.....................................................................................

................................................................................................................

6 

Thank you Todd Steinwand 9 

Welcome Don Morgan 10 

Implementing BND’s Mission 11 

A Better Way 13 

Industrial Commission Approves Workforce Housing Pilot 16 

Breaking the Barrier 17 

Smart with My Money 17 

STAND 19 

BND Leadership Team.......................................................................................21 

Ending Balance Sheets ......................................................................................23 

Ending Income Statements ............................................................................. 24 

Ten-Year Summary.............................................................................................25 

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 | 2 

FASB.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .............................................................................................27 



 

 

LETTER FROM THE

PRESIDENT 

As we wrap up 2024 at Bank of North 

Dakota (BND), I have been president and 

CEO for fve months. It didn’t take long 

for me to realize the weight of the legacy 

I’ve been asked to carry. My respect for 

the work of the previous 14 presidents has 

grown immensely, and I thank our three 

most recent leaders, Eric Hardmeyer, Todd 

Steinwand and Sen. John Hoeven, for 

setting a strong, mission-driven course for 

this team. I inherited a talented, intelligent 

team that is fercely dedicated to helping 

North Dakotans. 

Don Morgan 
President/CEO 
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This year’s annual report theme is Breaking the 
Barrier, a salute to BND’s leadership of two large 
multi-state agency eforts that were both released this 
year: Sustain. Transform. Authenticate. North Dakota. 
(STAND) and SmartWithMyMoney.nd.gov. 

Commissioned by the 2023 Legislature, the STAND 
task force released their initial report to the Legislative 
Energy Development and Transmission Committee and 
Workforce Committee in June. It has been heralded as a 
groundbreaking approach to forwarding the agriculture 
and energy agendas, balancing the use of fossil fuels 
and renewable energy sources for decades to come. 

We are also leading the state of North Dakota’s project 
to become the most fnancially literate state in the 
country by 2027. By funding the SmartWithMyMoney. 
nd.gov website, thousands of North Dakotans 
have access to trustworthy and reliable fnancial 
education. We are reaching many demographics 
through our partnerships with state agencies, 
nonproft organizations and private businesses. 

Both projects connect directly to us, fulflling our 
mission of 105 years: “to promote agriculture, 
commerce and industry in North Dakota.” STAND 
communicates the outstanding eforts our state’s 
agriculture and energy industries have taken to 
protect our land, a key factor for investors and 
export markets. A fnancially literate population 
is able to enjoy a good quality of life in our state 
while supporting a strong and growing economy. 

In addition to special projects like these, we manage 
the state’s precious funds, using them to help residents 
when needed, to grow businesses and farming/ 
ranching operations, to construct homes and to help 
North Dakotans rebuild their lives after a disaster. 

As a bank, we are frst and foremost risk managers. 
We hold $7.1 billion of the state’s deposits, and 
our highest priority is to protect those funds by 

B N D  A T  A  G L A N C E :  

$200.4 million net income 

$10.8 billion in assets 

15.8% ROI 
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understanding and mitigating three key areas 
of risk - liquidity, interest rate and credit. It’s a 
delicate balance, and BND has one of the most 
talented investment teams I’ve ever worked with. 

A strong banking industry is essential to keep 
communities strong and vital. As the largest 
public-private partnership in the state, we double 
our $5 billion commercial and agriculture loan 
portfolios through our relationships with local 
lenders. This unique relationship with BND gives 
a local North Dakota bank or credit union of any 
size the capacity to lend like it has the assets 
of a $10 billion bank, the asset size of BND. 

The Bank had a net income of $200.4 million, up 
from $192.7 million in 2023. Asset size grew to 
$10.8 billion compared to $10.1 billion in 2023. The 
Bank’s return on investment was a healthy 15.8%, 
and the total return to the state was $335 million or 
4.29%. Standard & Poor’s maintained BND’s rating as 
A+/Stable in its annual review completed in 2024. 

In 2025, we look forward to working with the 
Legislature and Governor’s Ofce, our partner fnancial 
institutions, economic developers, state agencies and 
trade associations to help meet the fnancing needs of 
our state’s residents. We have challenging problems 
to solve - afordable housing, child care, workforce, 
the impact of artifcial intelligence and identifying 
BND’s role in the emerging FinTech industry. Inviting 
the right people to join us in these discussions will 
be essential. Through it all, BND will remain stalwart, 
always secure and willing to step in and serve. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

  

  

  

 

 

LENDING 
PORTFOLIO 

Total 
Loan Portfolio 
The total loan portfolio grew by $384 million to 

$6.1 billion in 2024. There were increases in both 

the commercial and ag portfolios, with decreases 

in the student loan and home loan portfolios. 

Agriculture 
Loan Portfolio 
The agriculture loan portfolio increased by 

$61 million with BND funding and renewing 

$244 million of loans. Farm and Ranch Loans 

led the way with $183 million, followed 

by Established Farmer Real Estate Loans 

which funded $24 million for our state’s 

farmers and ranchers. 
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Business 
Loan Portfolio 
The business loan portfolio increased 

by $405 million with BND funding and 

renewing $1.8 billion of loans. This 11% 

increase was due primarily to commercial 

participations and state institution loans. 

The largest single type of loan utilized 

was commercial participations with BND 

funding and renewing $1.2 billion. 

Home 
Loan Portfolio 
As planned with the transfer of residential 

loan servicing to the North Dakota 

Housing Finance Agency on Oct. 1, 2021, 

BND no longer originates home loans. 

The home loan portfolio decreased by 

$29 million and will continue to decline 

with paydowns. 
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Student 
Loan Portfolio 
The student loan portfolio decreased 

by $51 million with BND disbursing 

$55 million in DEAL loans in 2024. 

Legislature-Directed 
Programs Portfolio 
BND administers over $1.1 billion in net 

assets in Legislature-Directed Programs, 

an increase of $59 million since 2023 

and an increase of $284 million in fve 

years. These programs serve a wide 

range of purposes including school 

construction, water projects and 

general and medical infrastructure. 
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Thank you 
Todd Steinwand 

BND PRESIDENT/CEO - 2021-2024 

Todd Steinwand retired as Bank of 

North Dakota’s 14th president and 

CEO in July 2024. He accepted 

the position after Eric Hardmeyer’s 

retirement in 2021. 

Many of Todd’s “sayings” will remain part of BND 
Culture, including: “Do the right thing – always,” “You 
can get a lot done when you don’t care who gets the 
credit,” and “BND is a public-private partnership.” Todd 
was also instrumental in navigating BND’s employees 
into a hybrid workforce after the COVID-19 pandemic. 

As president, Todd advocated for the Bank to 
continually innovate. During his tenure, he increased 
efciencies by spearheading the implementation of a 
loan application program, fundamentally streamlining 
the loan application process using Microsoft Dynamics 
for fnancial institutions; leading the transfer of BND’s 
residential loan originations, servicing and collection 
services to the North Dakota Housing Finance Agency; 
and the creation of a one-stop application to political 
subdivisions to apply for infrastructure funding from 
the Department of Transportation, Department of 
Water Resources, Department of Environmental 
Quality and Bank of North Dakota. 

Top: Todd Steinwand, BND president and CEO 2021-2024. 
Middle: L: Todd and his wife Shelly, at his retirement 
celebration. R: Eric Hardmeyer presents Todd with his 
Years of Service Award in 2018. Lower: Todd shares a 
story at the all-employee meeting in 2022. 
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Welcome Don Morgan 

BND PRESIDENT/CEO 

Don Morgan was appointed by the 

North Dakota Industrial Commission as 

BND’s 15th president and CEO. He began 

his new role August 1, 2024. 

Growing up on a cattle ranch in Hulett, Wyoming, 
instilled values of hard work and dedication early in 
Don Morgan’s life. He took up the family tradition of 
rodeoing at a young age, coming from a long line of 
ropers, eventually joining the professional ranks of 
rodeo from 2007-2012. 

The rodeo team at the University of Wyoming is where 
Don met his future wife, Shanda. He followed her 
back to North Dakota in 2000. Shanda grew up on the 
Black Leg Ranch in McKenzie, North Dakota, and they 
both remain active on the ranch today. Black Leg is 

award-winning for its work in regenerative agriculture 
practices and for stacking enterprises like outftting, 
wedding venues, ranch-to-market products and 
corporate events. 

Don’s banking career began in 2001 as a credit review 
analyst. He credits his frst boss, Dave Hoekstra, with 
teaching him about real banking, risk management, 
credit practices, strategy and corporate politics. Prior 
to him taking on his position at BND, he rose through 
the ranks of the banking industry, serving as a market 
president, vice president of credit administration, chief 
credit ofcer, chief fnancial ofcer and chief executive 
ofcer of a North Dakota bank. 

A certifed public accountant, Don received bachelor’s 
degrees in fnance and accounting from the University of 
Wyoming in 2001 and a master’s degree in accounting 
from the University of Phoenix in 2009. He has 
volunteered for Make-A Wish, Mandan Saddle Club, 4-H, 
National FFA Organization and High School Rodeo. 

Don is a father of four children and a business owner 
with his wife. He enjoys family, rodeo, hunting, fshing 
and volunteer activities. 
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IMPLEMENTING 
BND’S MISSION 

The mission of BND is to deliver quality, sound 

fnancial services that promote agriculture, 

commerce and industry in North Dakota. At times, 

it is easy to see implementation of the mission 

through an agriculture disaster program, a student 

getting a loan for college, or BND supporting a local 

fnancial institution’s mission in its community. 

Delivering on the mission requires a “stack” of 

priorities to ensure BND can meet its obligations to 

the state, local fnancial institutions and communities. 

In 2024, the Executive Committee 

and Advisory Board contemplated 

and outlined the order of priorities 

to deliver on its mission. 

BND is a primary risk manager for the state 

deploying taxpayer dollars in a responsible 

way. As an institution, BND manages liquidity 

risk, interest rate risk and credit risk. 
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 BND is a provider of liquidity to the state of North 
Dakota. The investment portfolio of $4 billion ensures the 
state can meet its obligations in all economic environments. 

BND multiplies the economic impact in the state. 
Most often, BND “participates” in a loan with a local 
fnancial institution at 50%. This results in BND’s $5 billion 
commercial and agriculture portfolios becoming $10 billion 
of lending in the state’s economy. 

BND is a loan administrator for Legislature-Directed 
Programs providing low interest loans to local communities, 
schools and economic diversifcation programs. 

BND provides a risk balanced return of 4% to the state 
of North Dakota through interest payments to state agencies 
and providing a dividend to be used by the Legislature. 
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.A BETTER WAY 

The “A Better Way” initiative was presented 
to employees at the all-employee meeting in 
October 2023. Staf was challenged to incorporate 
technology and interdepartmental and inter-state 
agency partnerships to improve efciency, customer 
service and workfows in the year ahead. 

This was a grassroots efort amongst the staf, 
and the results are impressive. Over the year, it’s 
estimated that more than 200 projects, work eforts 
and enhancements to existing processes were made. 

It’s that approach to serving each other, our state 
agency and banking partners, and North Dakota 
residents that drives the continuous commitment to 
a higher quality and standard. 

Top: BND team members Kirby Evanger, Nicholas 
Leintz and Tyler Gifey connect at the all-employee 
event. Bottom: Kris Ahmann reacts to a presentation 
at the A Better Way employee event. 
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Examples of Projects 

SmartWithMyMoney.nd.gov, the fnancial literacy platform, will be included as an 
option for North Dakota students on their own technology platform supported 
by the Department of Public Instruction that reports grades and attendance and 
shares school announcements. 

BND’s Dual Credit Assistance applications will be placed on the same technology 
platform, streamlining the 1,000 applications received annually. 

Human Resources streamlined several processes by using Microsoft Forms to 
improve the employee experience. 

Trust Department’s monthly reports were converted from running manually to 
using software to generate automatically, saving several hours per month with a 
quicker turnaround for customers. 

The Loan Operations team collaborated with the innovation and application 
support teams and streamlined the reconciliation process for loans serviced 
by others. They achieved this by creating a spreadsheet that automatically 
combines data from multiple sources into one fle, compares the data, and 
identifes discrepancies to be researched. This replaced a manual comparison 
process and saves over three hours each month. 

The Loan Administration team completely reordered the loan boarding sheets 
so the order of the sheets matched the order in which loans are reviewed on 
the core system. Previously the sheets were in the order in which loans were 
manually entered, but after an automated boarding process was implemented, 
the team identifed the better way to more efciently review loan input. 

Lending and Credit Analysis joined forces and created an 
abbreviated credit presentation to use on deals that do not require 
full underwriting. They added felds in the pipeline system for 
fle comments to be entered which automatically fow onto the 
presentation when it is generated. This allows bankers to provide 
comments quickly and ensure they are included in the presentation. 
The abbreviated presentation reduces the amount of time spent 
removing sections from the full template when they are not required 
and limits the amount of information to be entered in the template. 

This isn’t a one-and-done approach with many eforts in the queue for 
2025. The most rewarding part of the efort is that it has become part of 
the organizational DNA. It is common to hear, “Is there a better way to 
do this?” As every employee embraces this approach to their work, the 
Bank’s stakeholders can be well assured that BND will be a key partner so 
the state evolves and grows in a meaningful way. 

Left: Alison Anderson presents on how every employee can 
contribute to fnding A Better Way to do business. 
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Industrial Commission Approves 
Workforce Housing Pilot 

When Applied Digital released its 

plan to build a data center in Ellendale, 

North Dakota, one of the frst questions 

was, “Where will the new employees 

and their families live?” 

Bank of North Dakota responded with the Rural-
Workforce Initiative to Support Housing (R-WISH) 
pilot program which was approved by the Industrial 
Commission in June 2024. The R-WISH pilot supports 
rural communities of 20,000 residents or less with 
construction of market rate housing for workforce 
when a company is locating or expanding its operations. 

As of December 31, the program has utilized 
$3.5 million of the $10 million of BND capital allotted 
to the program in the community of Ellendale. It is 
a complement to the work being done by the North 
Dakota Housing Finance Agency and the North 
Dakota Housing Initiative Advisory Committee. 

To qualify, the community must be experiencing 
a period of rapid growth due to a new company 
locating in the community or a local company 
expanding by more than 10 full-time equivalent 
employees. Funds may be used for new multi-family 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
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and 1-4 family housing projects or the rehabilitation 
of existing multi-family and 1-4 family housing if 
it is more cost efective than new construction. 

The program enables projects that are hampered by 
disproportionate costs in comparison to attainable 
market rents to move forward. The project must 
show evidence of supporting local fnancial institution 
market rate fnancing with market rental rates. BND 
must be a participant in the local fnancial institution 
fnancing. The community and expanding company are 
expected to ofer either funding or in-kind support to 
qualify. The maximum amount from the R-WISH fund 
is the lesser of 20% of the project costs, $3.5 million, 
or the matching contribution from the company. 

The community must support the project 
through one or more of the following: 

A local development corporation 
providing direct funding 

In-kind contributions, such as land, 
property, or infrastructure 

Future dedicated tax programs 

Community share of the interest buydown 

The company expanding in the community must 
contribute to the project costs and may include: 

Providing direct equity to the project 

An in-kind contribution of product or labor 

Other support that helps lower the 
overall project cost or provide fnancial 
assurance during the term of the loan 

“The R-WISH program is a good example of a 
private-public partnership to maximize the use of 
state dollars,” stated Todd Steinwand, BND president 
and CEO when the project was announced. “As 
always, BND looks for program partners to ensure 
we are addressing local community needs and 
ensuring good stewardship of Bank funds.” 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  BREAKING THE 

BARRIER 
Bank of North Dakota actively pursues opportunities to 
unify eforts and collaborate for efciencies with other 
state agencies. The culmination of several initiatives 
started in 2023 was celebrated this year. These included 
the release of the Smart with My Money fnancial 
literacy efort and the sustainability report, Sustain. 
Transform. Authenticate. North Dakota. (STAND). 

Smart with My Money 
Gov. Doug Burgum kicked of Financial Literacy Month 
in April 2024 and shared a new challenge to North 
Dakota: to become the most fnancially literate state 
by 2027. The foundation for the efort is the website, 
SmartWithMyMoney.nd.gov, which is funded by Bank 
of North Dakota. 

This website is free to residents and allows them to 
create an account, take a research-based fnancial 
personality assessment, and learn how their personality 
afects their money decisions. That information, when 
paired with fnancial knowledge level of key topics, 
identifes personalized learning resources on the site to 
improve fnancial literacy. Completing challenges on 
the site enters people in a pool for a chance to win cash 
prizes. Data gathered by the Financial Industry Regulatory 
Authority (FINRA) will be used to assess progress. 

As of December 31, 2024, 
3,248 accounts were started 
with over 111,000 site visits. 

Top: State Treasurer Thomas Beadle is co-leading this efort with 
BND. Right: BND SVP of Business Development Kelvin Hullet 
receives appreciation from Gov. Burgum for BND’s eforts. 

The state has set the following benchmarks to meet 
by 2027 as measured by the FINRA study. The study is 
completed every three years, and the last set of data 
was calculated in 2021. 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 
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66% of residents will have emergency funds that 
last three months compared to 52% in 2021 

The percentage of residents who experience 
fnancial anxiety will decrease from 56% to 33% 

66% of residents will have a retirement plan 
through their employer compared to 57% today 

Residents who fnd it difcult to cover 
expenses and pay all their bills in a typical 
month will decrease to 33% from 45% 

66% of residents will receive the higher 
overall fnancial knowledge score compared 
to 37% in the last set of released data 

Bank of North Dakota continues to expand its 
networking with state agencies, along with the business 
and banking communities, to deliver the program 
through multiple channels. By year-end, there were 
12 state agencies, nine banks and credit unions, 
and several businesses participating in the efort. 

https://SmartWithMyMoney.nd.gov
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STAND 
Amid growing external market and political pressures 
critiquing agricultural and fossil fuel practices, Bank 
of North Dakota was tasked by the 2023 Legislative 
Assembly with evaluating the complex policies and 
trends impacting North Dakota’s businesses and 
industries. This efort culminated in the creation of 
STAND—Sustain. Transform. Authenticate. North 
Dakota.—a cross-sector initiative aimed at educating 
consumers nationwide and globally about North 
Dakota’s progressive practices. 

A group of 27 North Dakotans, including elected 
ofcials, private industry leaders and representatives 
from state agencies and associations, developed 
STAND’s frst report, with additional input from over 
80 in-state and global entities. STAND is a platform 
for sharing authentic stories of sustainability, 
innovation and transformation, with a focus on energy, 
agriculture, conservation and carbon management. 

Since presenting the report to the Legislative Energy 
Development and Transmission Committee and Workforce 
Committee in June, STAND has ignited meaningful 
discussions among industry leaders and government 
ofcials in North Dakota and beyond. The report has 
received widespread recognition for its comprehensive, 
cross-functional approach, ofering a practical framework 
for economic advancement. Feedback has underscored 
STAND’s potential to drive progress in key sectors, 
positioning North Dakota as a forward-thinking leader in 
sustainability and economic transformation. 

The report and website, stand.nd.gov, mark the 
beginning of this ongoing efort. New stories and 
content will continue to showcase North Dakota’s 
agriculture and energy sectors as environmentally 
responsible and economically viable, reinforcing the 
state’s commitment to a sustainable future. 

Visit stand.nd.gov to learn more. 

BND President/CEO Don Morgan presents 
Kayla Ver Helst with the Sodbuster Award. 

Kayla Ver Helst Recognized 
for STAND Leadership 

Kayla Ver Helst, BND sustainability officer 
and leader of the STAND effort, was honored 
as the recipient of the Governor’s Sodbuster 
Award for Excellence in Growth Mindset. 
She was recognized for demonstrating 
exceptional leadership and coordination 
skills for spearheading the groundbreaking 
STAND study, ensuring that diverse 
perspectives and expertise in a complicated 
field were integrated into the final product. 

Her nominator stated, “Kayla’s efforts 
culminated in a unified vision for the future, 
shaping conceptual plans and goals that 
reflect both present capabilities and future 
aspirations. Her dedication and strategic 
approach have significantly advanced the 
state’s ESG objectives and set a strong 
foundation for ongoing progress.” 

Congratulations, Kayla! 

https://stand.nd.gov
https://stand.nd.gov
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BND 
Leadership Team 
BND is overseen by the North 
Dakota Industrial Commission. 
The governor appoints an advisory 
board of directors which consists of 
banking and business leaders who 
advise the Industrial Commission and 
BND on state trends. The Industrial 
Commission appoints the Bank 
president who hires the Executive 
Committee members. 

The BND Advisory Board consists of 
three subcommittees which assist the 
Board and Industrial Commission in 
fulflling their oversight responsibilities 
to ensure the safety and soundness 
of the Bank. These committees 
are Finance and Credit, Audit and 
Risk Management, and Leadership 
Development and Compensation. 

ND Industrial Commission 

Kelly Armstrong 
Governor 

Drew H. Wrigley 
Attorney General 

Doug Goehring 
Agriculture Commissioner 
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BND Advisory Board 

Karl Bollingberg 
Chairman of the Board 

Dennis Johnson 
Board Member 

Jean Voorhees 
Board Member 

Pat Clement 
Board Member 

Christie Obenauer 
Board Member 

Bill Price 
Board Member 

Brenda Foster 
Board Member 

BND Executive Committee 

Don Morgan 
President/CEO 

Alison Anderson 
Chief Banking & 

Innovation Ofcer 

Kirby Evanger 
Chief Credit Ofcer 

Craig Hanson 
Chief Lending Ofcer 

Kelvin Hullet 
Chief Business 

Development Ofcer 

Lori Leingang 
Chief Administrative 

Ofcer 

Rob Pfennig 
Chief Financial Ofcer 

Christy 
Stefenhagen 
Chief Risk Ofcer 

Rick Gelof 
Executive Vice 

President 
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Ending Balance Sheets 
Bank of North Dakota 
Years Ended December 2024 and 2023 

(In thousands) 

2024 2023 

Assets 
Cash and due from banks 390,195 $ 402,587 

Federal funds sold 16,540 37,470 
Securities 4,230,188 3,876,909 
Loans 

Commercial 4,049,998 3,644,897 
Agriculture 794,513 734,237 
Residential 286,938 316,153 
Student 1,011,506 1,063,453 

Total Loans 6,142,955 5,758,740 
Less Allowance for Loan Loss (106,535) (99,865) 

Total Loans Less Allowance 6,036,420 5,658,875 
Other Assets 163,135 168,787 

Total Assets $ 10,836,478 $ 10,144,628 

Liabilities and Equity 

Deposits 
Noninterest Bearing $ 615,171 $ 664,010 
Interest Bearing 8,074,996 8,045,138 

Total Deposits 8,690,167 8,709,148 

Federal Funds Purchased 
and Repurchase Agreements 370,327 323,010 

Short- and Long-term Borrowings 480,000 25,000 
Other Liabilities 25,074 28,183 

Total Liabilities 9,565,568 9,085,341 

Equity 1,270,910 1,059,287 

Total Liabilities and Equity $ 10,836,478 $ 10,144,628 
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Ending Income Statements 
Bank of North Dakota 
Years Ended December 2024 and 2023 

(In thousands) 2024 2023 

Interest Income $ 450,043 $ 365,213 
Interest Expense (209,994) (137,201) 

Net Interest Income 240,049 228,012 
Provision for Loan Losses (10,702) (7,507) 

Net Interest Income After Provision 229,347 220,505 
Noninterest Income 8,713 6,697 
Noninterest Expense 

Salaries and Benefits (21,749) (19,564) 
Data Processing (7,765) (7,466) 
Occupancy and Equipment (858) (828) 
Other Operating Expenses (7,253) (6,605) 

Total Noninterest Expense (37,625) (34,463) 

Net Income 200,435 192,739 

View a complete copy of the 2024 Audited Financial Statements 
at bnd.nd.gov/annual-report. 
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Ten-Year Summary 
Bank of North Dakota | December 31, 2015-2024 

2024 2023 2022 2021 

Operating results (in thousands) 

Interest income $450,043 $365,213 $260,591 $204,457 

Interest expense 209,994 137,201 40,882 28,921 

Net interest income 240,049 228,012 219,709 175,536 

Provision for loan losses 10,702 7,507 - 4,750 

Net interest income after 229,347 220,505 219,709 170,786 
provision for loan losses 

Noninterest income 8,713 6,697 4,751 6,381 

Noninterest expense 37,625 34,463 33,310 32,996 

Net income 200,435 192,739 191,150 144,171 

Payments to general fund - 140,000 - 35,000 

Payments to other funds 51,289 88,238 30,397 39,605 

Balance sheet (in thousands) 

Total assets - year end 10,836,478 10,144,628 10,195,815 10,028,128 

Federal funds sold and 16,540 37,470 44,605 4,450 
resell agreements 

Securities 4,230,188 3,876,909 4,344,352 2,600,007 

Loans 6,142,955 5,758,740 5,364,627 4,688,820 

Agricultural 794,513 734,237 709,866 701,768 

Business 4,049,998 3,644,897 3,199,277 2,434,765 

Residential 286,938 316,153 351,076 406,565 

Student 1,011,506 1,063,453 1,104,408 1,145,722 

Deposits 8,690,167 8,709,148 8,311,947 8,133,894 

Noninterest bearing 615,171 664,010 632,498 765,200 

Interest bearing 8,074,996 8,045,138 7,679,449 7,368,694 

Federal funds purchased and 370,327 323,010 205,845 763,250 
repurchase agreements 

Short- and long-term debt 480,000 25,000 675,000 108,000 

Equity 1,270,910 1,059,287 997,188 981,569 

Capital 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 

Capital surplus 72,000 72,000 72,000 72,000 

Undivided profits 1,217,443 1,068,297 1,100,653 939,900 

Accumulated other comprehensive (20,533) (83,010) (177,465) (32,331) 
income (loss) 
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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

 $225,479 

 41,018 

 184,461 

 16,800

 167,661

 $263,738 

 58,515 

 205,223 

 6,000 

 199,223 

$240,002 

46,442 

193,560 

12,000 

181,560 

$219,700 

37,865 

181,835 

12,000 

169,835 

$210,803 

33,975 

176,828 

16,000 

160,828 

$194,298

32,164

162,134

12,500

149,634

 4,603

 31,063

 141,201

 70,000

 67,550

 6,916 

 37,090 

 169,049 

 35,000 

 45,109 

7,170 

30,222 

158,508 

70,000 

58,614 

6,335 

30,886 

145,284 

170,000 

16,932 

6,323 

30,996 

136,155 

-

19,989 

7,688

26,668

130,654

-

28,645 

7,744,319 

10,000 

7,058,432 

10,685 

7,015,834 

39,465 

7,003,302 

57,555 

7,295,268 

63,070 

7,407,942 

77,905 

1,849,609 2,016,126 1,912,743 1,665,252 2,068,327 2,657,527 

4,756,542 

762,809 

2,272,999 

535,098 

1,185,636 

4,537,943 

647,108 

2,078,573 

628,319 

1,183,943 

4,584,233 

665,691 

2,039,833 

694,577 

1,184,132 

4,909,278 

668,904 

2,071,953 

762,480 

1,405,941 

4,789,553 

687,486 

1,982,625 

739,412 

1,380,030 

4,339,618 

513,899 

1,811,259 

693,712 

1,320,748 

5,795,472 

750,741 

5,044,731 

5,089,092 

628,256 

4,460,836 

4,769,819 

567,352 

4,202,467 

4,604,958 

555,020 

4,049,938 

4,887,192 

663,156 

4,224,036 

5,802,142 

641,264 

5,160,878 

775,005 365,335 271,505 299,775 242,480 119,500 

186,010 631,030 1,103,436 1,263,569 1,280,538 727,322 

912,904 

2,000 

72,000 

870,333 

(31,429) 

939,028 

2,000 

72,000 

866,682 

(1,654) 

861,884 

2,000 

72,000 

777,742 

10,142 

824,802 

2,000 

72,000 

747,848 

2,954 

875,732 

2,000 

72,000 

789,496 

12,236 

749,493 

2,000 

72,000 

673,330 

2,163 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com 

4585 Coleman St., Ste. 200  |  P.O. Box 1914  |  Bismarck, ND 58502-1914  |  T 701.255.1091  |  F 701.224.1582  |  EOE 

Governor of North Dakota and 
 the Legislative Assembly 

State of North Dakota 
Bismarck, North Dakota 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of the Bank of North Dakota, which comprise the balance 
sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related statements of income, comprehensive 
income, equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. 

Unmodified Opinion on Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Basis of Accounting 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Bank of North Dakota as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its 
operations and its cash flows for years then ended, in accordance with financial reporting provisions as 
promulgated by FASB described in Note 1. 

Adverse Opinion U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 

In our opinion, because of the significance of the matter discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion on 
U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles section of our report, the financial statements do not 
present fairly, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the financial position of the Bank of North Dakota as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, or the 
results of its operations or its cash flows for the years then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the Bank of North Dakota, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance 
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
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Basis for Adverse Opinion on U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 

As described in Note 1 of the financial statements, Bank of North Dakota is a governmental entity as 
defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Accordingly, the standards as 
promulgated by GASB are the appropriate accounting standards for Bank of North Dakota to follow. 
However, Bank of North Dakota has prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting 
standards as promulgated by FASB even though the entity meets the “governmental” criteria. The 
effects on the financial statements of the variances between the accounting policies described in Note 1 
and generally accepted accounting principles for governmental entities, although not reasonably 
determinable, are presumed to be material. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Bank of North Dakota’s 
ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are 
available to be issued. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
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In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank of North Dakota’s internal control. Accordingly, no such 
opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Bank of North Dakota’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Bismarck, North Dakota 
February 4, 2025 
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BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
BALANCE SHEETS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

2024 2023 

ASSETS 

Cash and due from banks 
Federal funds sold 

$ 390,195 
16,540 

$ 402,587 
37,470 

Cash and cash equivalents 406,735 440,057 

Debt securities 
Available-for-sale debt securities, at fair value 

(amortized cost 2024 - $4,287,999, 2023 - $4,004,801, 
net of allowance for credit losses 2024 - $0, 2023 - $0) 4,202,501 3,869,666 

Loans held for investment 
Less allowance for credit losses 

6,142,955 
(106,535) 

6,036,420 

5,758,740 
(99,865) 

5,658,875 

Interest receivable 
Bank premises, equipment, and software, net 
Other restricted stock, at cost 
Other assets 

85,431 
8,661 

27,687 
69,043 

72,954 
9,149 
7,243 

86,684 

Total assets $10,836,478 $ 10,144,628 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Deposits 
Non-interest bearing 
Interest bearing 

$ 615,171 
8,074,996 
8,690,167 

$ 664,010 
8,045,138 
8,709,148 

Federal funds purchased 
Short and long-term debt 
Other liabilities 

370,327 
480,000 

25,074 

323,010 
25,000 
28,183 

Total liabilities 9,565,568 9,085,341 

Equity 
Capital 
Capital surplus 
Undivided profits 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 

2,000 
72,000 

1,217,443 
(20,533) 

2,000 
72,000 

1,068,297 
(83,010) 

Total equity 1,270,910 1,059,287 

Total liabilities and equity $10,836,478 $ 10,144,628 

See Notes to Financial Statements 4 



 
 

  
 

 

    
 

 
             
             

        
             
                              
                                      
             
                              
             

        
                               
          
                                   
                                   
             
                              
             

                            
             

                                  
             

       
                             
             

        
                                     
             
                                       
             

        
                                 
                                     
                                         
                                     
                                  
             

             
             

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

2024 2023 

INTEREST INCOME 
Loans, including fees 
Securities 
Federal funds sold 

$ 307,887 
140,949 

1,207 

$ 262,165 
100,335 

2,713 

Total interest income 450,043 365,213 

INTEREST EXPENSE 
Deposits 
Federal funds purchased 

and repurchase agreements 
Short and long-term debt 

181,061 

20,034 
8,899 

100,255 

13,678 
23,268 

Total interest expense 209,994 137,201 

NET INTEREST INCOME 240,049 228,012 

PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES 10,702 7,507 

NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER 
PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES 229,347 220,505 

NONINTEREST INCOME 
Service fees and other 8,713 6,697 

Total noninterest income 8,713 6,697 

NONINTEREST EXPENSE 
Salaries and benefits 
Data processing 
Occupancy and equipment 
Other operating expenses 

Total noninterest expenses 

21,749 
7,765 

858 
7,253 

37,625 

19,564 
7,466 

828 
6,605 

34,463 

NET INCOME $ 200,435 $ 192,739 

See Notes to Financial Statements 5 



 
 

  
 

 

   
 

 
             
             
             
             
         
                            
                              
             
                                 
             
            
             

 

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

2024 2023 

Net income $ 200,435 $ 192,739 

Other comprehensive income 
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale debt securities 
Cash flow hedging activities -interest rate swap contracts 

49,637 
12,840 

105,398 
(10,943) 

Other comprehensive income 62,477 94,455 

Comprehensive income $ 262,912 $ 287,194 

See Notes to Financial Statements 6 



 
 

 
 

 

       
 

 

 
 
 

     

                            
                      

                      
                      

                            
                          

                    

                                                      

                      

                          
                          

                      

     

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
STATEMENTS OF EQUITY 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

Capital 
Capital 
Surplus 

Undivided 
Profits 

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income (Loss) Total 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2022 $ 2,000 $ 72,000 $ 1,100,653 $ (177,465) $ 997,188 

Cumulative change in accounting principal 
Net income 
Unrealized gain on 

available-for-sale debt securities 
Unrealized loss on interest rate swaps 
Appropriations In 
Appropriations (Out) 
Transfers to other state funds 

5,500 
(5,500) 

3,143 
192,739 

(228,238) 

105,398 
(10,943) 

3,143 
192,739 

105,398 
(10,943) 

5,500 
(5,500) 

(228,238) 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2023 2,000 72,000 1,068,297 (83,010) 1,059,287 

Net income 
Unrealized gain on 

available-for-sale debt securities 
Unrealized gain on interest rate swaps 
Transfers to other state funds 

200,435 

(51,289) 

49,637 
12,840 

200,435 

49,637 
12,840 

(51,289) 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2024 $ 2,000 $ 72,000 $ 1,217,443 $ (20,533) $ 1,270,910 

See Notes to Financial Statements 7 



 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 

  

                                              
                                     
                                  
                                                       
                                
                                 
                                         

                              

                        
 

                              
                            

                              
                            
                                          
                                                   

                             

                                 
                                
                                
                      
                  
                              

                             

                                

                              

  

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

2024 2023 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income
  to net cash from operating activities 

Depreciation and amortization 
Provision for credit losses 
Amortization of debt securities 
Loss on sale of foreclosed assets 
Net change in interest receivable 
Net change in other assets 
Net change in other liabilities 

$ 200,435 

650 
10,702 
63,828 

-
(12,477) 
26,258 

(830) 

$ 192,739 

547 
7,507 

13,785 
1 

(12,562) 
(22,091) 

9,501 

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 288,566 189,427 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Debt securities available for sale transactions 

Purchases of available-for-sale debt securities 
Proceeds from sales, maturities, and repayments 
of available for sale securities 

Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank stock 
Proceeds from sales, maturities, and repayments 

of Federal Home Loan Bank stock 
Loan principal originations net 
Purchases of premises, equipment, and software 
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed assets 

(1,315,469) 

968,443 
(186,087) 

165,643 
(386,303) 

(162) 
-

(298,914) 

828,213 
(445,000) 

474,757 
(394,616) 

(385) 
124 

NET CASH (USED FOR) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (753,935) 164,179 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Net change in non-interest bearing deposits 
Net change in interest bearing deposits 
Net change in federal funds purchased 
Proceeds from issuance of short and long-term debt 
Repayment of short and long-term debt 
Payment of transfers to other state funds 

(48,839) 
29,858 
47,317 

7,166,016 
(6,711,016) 

(51,289) 

31,512 
365,689 
117,165 

13,300,001 
(13,950,001) 

(228,238) 

NET CASH FROM (USED FOR) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 432,047 (363,872) 

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (33,322) (10,266) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 440,057 450,323 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 406,735 $ 440,057 

See Notes to Financial Statements 8 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
    

 
  

 
   

  
  

  
     

  
  

  
 

     
    

     
 

 
   

 
  

 
  

 
 

 
     

        
   

   
      

                                   
 

 
 

 
   

 

 

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Operations 

Bank of North Dakota (BND) is owned and operated by the State of North Dakota under the supervision of 
the Industrial Commission as provided by Chapter 6-09 of the North Dakota Century Code. BND is a unique 
institution combining elements of banking, fiduciary, investment management services, and other financial 
services, and state government with a primary role in financing economic development. BND is a 
participation lender; the vast majority of its loans are purchased from financial institutions throughout the 
State of North Dakota. BND’s primary deposit products are interest-bearing accounts for state and political 
subdivisions.  Deposits held at the Bank are not covered by depository insurance, but rather are guaranteed 
by the State of North Dakota as described in NDCC Section 6-09-10. 

Bank of North Dakota is included as part of the primary government in the State of North Dakota’s reporting 
entity. As such, BND is required to follow the pronouncements of the Government Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB), which is the nationally accepted standard setting body for establishing generally accepted 
accounting principles for governmental entities. 

However, the accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with Financial Accounting 
Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification, which are generally accepted accounting principles 
for financial institutions. 

BND also prepares financial statements in accordance with GASB pronouncements. 

Use of Estimates 

In preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, management 
is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as 
of the date of the balance sheet and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible 
to significant change in the near-term relate to the determinations of the allowance for credit losses and the 
fair market value of interest rate swaps. 

Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk 

Most of the Bank’s lending activities are with customers within the State of North Dakota. The Bank’s 
loan portfolio is comprised of the following concentrations as of December 31, 2024 and 2023: 

2024 2023 

Commercial loans, of which 1% and 2% are federally guaranteed 66% 63% 
Student loans, of which 100% and 100% are guaranteed 16% 19% 
Residential loans, of which 67% and 70% are federally guaranteed 5% 5% 
Agricultural loans, of which 4% and 4% are federally guaranteed 13% 13% 

100% 100% 

Continued on next page 9 



 
 

   
 

 

   
 

 
  

 
   

        
 

  
 

     
         

    
     
      

 
      

      
   

 
  

 
      

    
      

       
  

    
   

     
      

  
   
  

   
       

             
 

 
          

    
       

 
    

   
   

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and balances due from 
banks and federal funds sold, all with original maturities of 90 days or less. 

Securities 

Debt securities that may be sold before maturity in response to changes in interest rates or prepayment risk, 
or due to liquidity needs or changes in funding sources or terms are classified as available- for-sale. These 
securities are recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported 
in comprehensive income (loss). Debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold 
to maturity are classified as held to maturity and recorded at amortized cost. 

Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the terms 
of the securities, which for premiums is the earlier of maturity or call date. Gains and losses on the sale of 
securities are recorded on the trade date and are determined using the specific identification method. 

Allowance for Credit Losses – Available-for-Sale Securities 

The Bank measures the allowance for credit losses on available for sale debt securities by first assessing 
whether it intends to sell, or it is more likely than not that it will be required to sell the security before 
recovery of its amortized cost. If it is determined that the Bank intends or will be required to sell the security, 
it is written down to its fair value through income. For securities issued by government agencies that do not 
meet the aforementioned criteria, there are no expected credit losses as they are guaranteed by the U.S. 
government, are highly rated by major rating agencies, and have a long history of no credit losses. For other 
debt securities that do not meet the aforementioned criteria, the Bank evaluates whether the decline in fair 
value has resulted from credit losses or other factors. In making this assessment management considers the 
extent to which fair value is less than amortized cost, any changes to the rating of the security by a rating 
agency, and adverse conditions specifically related to the security, among other factors. If this assessment 
indicates that a credit loss exists, the present value of cash flows expected to be collected from the security 
are compared to the amortized cost of the security. If the present value of cash flows expected to be collected 
is less than the amortized cost basis, a credit loss exists and an allowance for credit losses on available-for-
sale investments is recorded and is limited to the amount that the fair value is less that the amortized cost 
basis. Any impairment that has not been recorded through an allowance for credit losses is recognized in 
other comprehensive income (loss). 

Changes in the allowance for credit losses are recorded as provision for or (reversal) of credit losses. Losses 
are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectability of an available-for-sale 
debt security is confirmed or when the criteria regarding intent or requirement to sell is met. 

Accrued interest receivable on available-for-sale debt securities totaling $14,154 and $12,440 at December 
31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, is included in interest receivable on the consolidated balance sheets and is 
excluded from the estimate of credit losses. 

Continued on next page 10 



 
 

   
 

 

   
 

 
 

 
            

     
 

    
 

     
  

   
 

  
 

 
   

            
  

 
 

  
 

  
   

     
     

 
 

     
      

     
  

       
 

    
     

     
    

 
    

         
 

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

Other Restricted Stock 

The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) system. Members are required to own a 
certain amount of stock based on the level of borrowings and other factors and may invest additional 
amounts. FHLB stock is carried at cost, classified as a restricted security, and periodically evaluated for 
impairment based on ultimate recovery of par value. Both cash and stock dividends are reported as income. 

Effective December 15, 2023, the amount of stock that the Bank must hold is equal to .06% of total bank 
assets plus 4.50% of total FHLB advances. Since ownership of this stock is restricted, these securities are 
carried at cost and evaluated periodically for impairment. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and other assumptions, as 
more fully disclosed in a separate footnote. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant 
judgement regarding interest rates, credit risk, prepayments, and other factors, especially in the absence of broad 
markets for particular items. Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect these 
estimates. 

Loans 

Loans are reported at the outstanding unpaid principal balances, adjusted for charge-offs, unamortized 
deferred fees and costs on originated loans and premiums or discounts on purchased loans. Interest income 
on loans is accrued at the specific rate on the unpaid principal balance. Unearned income, deferred fees and 
costs, and discounts and premiums are amortized to income over the estimated life of the loan using the 
interest or straight line method. 

Interest income on loans is accrued at the specific rate on the unpaid principal balance. The accrual of 
interest is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent unless the credit is well secured and in the 
process of collection or when, in management’s opinion, the borrower may be unable to meet payments as 
they become due. Past due status is based on contractual terms of the loan. In all cases, loans are placed on 
non-accrual or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful. 

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on non-accrual or charged-off is reversed 
against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery 
method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal 
and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured. 

Accrued interest receivable on loans totaling $69,511 and $58,776 at December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively, is included in interest receivable on the balance sheets and is excluded from the estimate of 
credit losses. 

Continued on next page 11 



 
 

   
 

 

   
 

 
     

    
           

    
   

     
 

 
  

       
         

  
     
     

      
     

     
  

 
  

     
 

            
 

           
    

 
      

    
      

      
 

  
   

  
       

 
   

 
    

  

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

Commercial loans are primarily made for business working capital needs and are underwritten based on the 
identified or projected cash flows of the borrower and/or the underlying collateral provided by the borrower. 
The primary repayment risks of C&I loans are that the cash flows of the borrower may be unpredictable, 
and the collateral securing these loans may fluctuate in value. Collateral for these loans generally includes 
the business assets financed, accounts receivable, inventory, and equipment. The collateral securing these 
loans may depreciate over time, may be difficult to appraise, and may fluctuate in value based on the success 
of the business. These loans may incorporate a corporate or personal guarantee. 

Commercial real estate loans are offered to commercial customers for the acquisition of real estate used in 
their businesses, such as offices, warehouses and production facilities, and to real estate investors for the 
acquisition of apartment buildings, retail centers, office buildings and other commercial buildings. 
Commercial real estate loans are underwritten after evaluating and understanding the borrower's ability to 
operate profitably and prudently expand its business. Management examines current and projected cash 
flows to determine the ability of the borrower to repay its obligations as agreed. Commercial real estate 
lending typically involves higher loan principal amounts and the repayment of these loans is generally 
dependent on sufficient income from the properties securing the loans to cover operating expenses and debt 
service. Commercial real estate loans may be more adversely affected by conditions in the real estate 
markets or in the general economy. 

Agricultural operating loans are generally comprised of loans to fund farm operations and the purchase of 
equipment and livestock. Operating lines are typically written for one year and secured by the crop and 
other farm assets or business assets, as considered appropriate. Repayment of agricultural loans depends on 
the successful operation or management of the farm property securing the loan or for which an operating 
loan is utilized. The ability of the borrower to repay may be affected by many factors outside of the 
borrower's control including adverse weather conditions, loss of livestock due to disease or other factors, 
declines in market prices for agricultural products and the impact of government regulations. 

Agricultural real estate loans are primarily comprised of real estate operated and owned or leased by a 
farmer, or other organization authorized to own, or lease land used for farming or ranching. The Bank may 
make direct loans through Beginning Farmer and Established Farmer for the purchase of farm real estate. 
The Bank may also participate in loans for the purchase of farm real estate through other agricultural 
programs. 

Residential real estate loans are collateralized by primary and secondary positions on 1-4 family real estate 
and are underwritten primarily based on borrower's documented income, credit scores, and collateral values. 
Repayment of these loans is largely dependent on the borrower's financial stability and may be impacted 
by adverse personal circumstances. Credit risk is minimized within the residential mortgage portfolio due 
to relatively smaller loan balances spread across many individual borrowers. The Bank no longer originates 
residential mortgage loans. In December 2020, the Bank signed a Servicing Agreement with the North 
Dakota Housing Finance Agency (NDHFA) effective April 1, 2021, to transfer the Bank’s mortgage 
servicing to NDHFA. 

Continued on next page 12 



 
 

   
 

 

   
 

 
     

   
    

   
    

          
     

      
 

   
 

   
       

       
   

 
  

    
   

      
      

 
      

     
     

     
              

    
 

 
      

   
          

     
      

    
 

         
  

    
 

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

Student loans are offered to North Dakota residents and non-residents to attend both in-state and out-of-
state schools. Dakota Education Alternative Loans (DEAL) are fully guaranteed by the North Dakota 
Guaranteed Student Loan Program, which is administered by the Bank. DEAL Student Loans are offered 
to assist in covering the cost of attending college if federal loans, grants, scholarships and savings don’t 
meet funding needs. It can be used for undergraduate and graduate classes. In addition, refinancing options 
are available to combine loans from one or more lenders into one new loan, with the option for extended 
repayment terms. Effective April 1, 2024, student loans are only offered to North Dakota residents attending 
an eligible in-state and out-of-state school, and out-of-state residents attending a North Dakota school. 

Allowance for Credit Losses (ACL) - Loans 

The ACL for loans is a valuation allowance for the current expected credit losses in the Bank's loan portfolio 
that is deducted from the loan's amortized cost basis to present the net amount expected to be collected. 
Loans are charged-off against the allowance when management believes the collectability of the loan 
balance is unlikely. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the ACL. 

Management estimates the allowance over the loan's entire contractual term, adjusted for expected 
prepayments when appropriate. The allowance estimate considers relevant, available information from 
internal and external sources relating to past events, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable 
forecasts. Historical credit loss experience provides the basis for the estimation of expected credit losses. 
Adjustments to historical loss information are made for qualitative or environmental factors that cause the 
estimate for expected losses as of the evaluation date to differ from historical loss experience. Qualitative 
factors include consideration of the following: changes in lending policies and procedures; changes in 
economic conditions, changes in the nature and volume of the portfolio; changes in the experience, ability 
and depth of lending management and other relevant staff; changes in the volume and severity of past due, 
nonaccrual and other adversely graded loans; changes in the loan review system; changes in the collateral 
valuations; concentrations of credit; the effect of other external factors such as competition and legal and 
regulatory requirements; and other relevant factors determined by management. 

The ACL is measured on a collective (pool) basis when similar risk characteristics exist and on an individual 
basis when management determines that the loan does not share similar risk characteristics with other loans. 
The Bank has identified the following loan pools: commercial, agricultural, residential, and student loans. 
Relevant risk characteristics for commercial, agricultural, residential, and student loan pools include debt 
service coverage, loan-to-value ratios, financial performance, credit scores, debt-to income ratios, collateral 
type, and loan-to-value ratios. The Bank uses the Weighted Average Remaining Maturity method to 
measure the ACL for all loan pools to calculate a loss rate that combines the pool's risk characteristics, 
historical loss experience, and reasonable and supportable future economic forecasts to project lifetime 
losses. The loss rate is then combined with the loans balance and contractual maturity, adjusted for expected 
prepayments, to determine expected future losses. Future and supportable economic forecasts are based on 
various economic conditions over a period of up to 72 months followed by a reversion back to historical 
losses. 

Continued on next page 13 



 
 

   
 

 

   
 

 
            

  
     

   
   

      
    

     
      

    
 

   
 

   
  

 
         

   
   

 
    

  
 

 
 

  
      

        
    

    
 

 
 

       
   

       
  

 
    

   
          

  
   

  
       

  

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

Loans that do not share similar risk characteristics to their loan pool are evaluated on an individual basis 
and are excluded from the collective measurement. Loans can be identified for individual evaluation for 
various reasons including delinquency, nonaccrual status, risk rating and loan modifications. A loan is 
considered collateral dependent when management determines that foreclosure is probable or when the 
borrower is experiencing financial difficulty and repayment is expected to be provided substantially through 
the operation or sale of the collateral. The ACL on collateral dependent loans is measured using the 
amortized cost basis of the financial asset less the fair value of the underlying collateral, adjusted for costs 
to sell, when applicable. If the value of the underlying collateral is determined to be less than the recorded 
amount of the loan, a specific reserve for that loan is recorded. If the Bank determines that the loss 
represented by the specific reserve is uncollectible it records a charge-off for the uncollectible portion. 

Allowance for Credit Losses (ACL) – Unfunded Commitments 

The Bank establishes a liability for estimated expected credit losses on unfunded commitments to originate 
or fund loans and standby letters of credit, excluding commitments that are unconditionally cancellable. 
The estimate is included in “Other Liabilities” on the balance sheets. Expected credit losses are estimated 
over the contractual period in which the Bank is exposed to credit risk through the commitment adjusted 
for anticipated prepayments when appropriate. The estimate of the liability also considers the likelihood 
that funding will occur. The ACL on unfunded commitments is adjusted through provision for credit losses 
on statements of income. The underwriting process and risks associated with unfunded commitments and 
standby letters of credit are essentially the same as loans and therefore the Bank uses the same ACL process 
as loans to estimate the liability. 

Transfers of Financial Assets 

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered. 
Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the 
Bank, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that 
right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Bank does not maintain effective control 
over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity. 

Derivatives and Hedging Activities 

At the inception of a derivative contract, the Bank designates the derivative as one of three types based on 
the Bank’s intentions and belief as to likely effectiveness as a hedge.  These three types are (1) a hedge of 
the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or of an unrecognized firm commitment (“fair value hedge”), 
(2) a hedge of a forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a 
recognized asset or liability (“cash flow hedge”), or (3) an instrument with no hedging designation (“stand-
alone derivative”).  For a fair value hedge, the gain or loss on the derivative, as well as the offsetting loss 
or gain on the hedged item, are recognized in current earnings as fair values change.  For a cash flow hedge, 
the gain or loss on the derivative is reported in other comprehensive income and is reclassified into earnings 
in the same periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings.  For both types of hedges, changes 
in the fair value of derivatives that are not highly effective in hedging the changes in fair value or expected 
cash flows of the hedged item are recognized immediately in current earnings.  Changes in the fair value of 
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are reported currently in earnings, as non-interest 
income or expense. 

Continued on next page 14 



 
 

   
 

 

   
 

 
  

     
        

   
 

   
       

   
    

 
  

         
   

 
  

 
     

      
     

   
      

 
 

 
  

 
   

            
     

 
 

 
 

  
   

      
        
           

      
 

  
 

   

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

Net cash settlements on derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting are recorded in interest income or 
interest expense, based on the item being hedged.  Net cash settlements on derivatives that do not qualify 
for hedge accounting are reported in non-interest income.  Cash flows on hedges are classified in the cash 
flow statement the same as the cash flows of the items being hedged. 

The Bank formally documents the relationship between derivatives and hedged items, as well as the risk-
management objective and the strategy for undertaking hedge transactions at the inception of the hedging 
relationship.  This documentation includes linking fair value or cash flow hedges to specific assets and 
liabilities on the balance sheet or to specific firm commitments or forecasted transactions.  The Bank also 
formally assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivative instruments 
that are used are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged items.  The 
Bank discontinues hedge accounting when it determines that the derivative is no longer effective in 
offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows of the hedged item, the derivative is settled or terminates, 
a hedged forecasted transaction is no longer probable, a hedged firm commitment is no longer firm, or 
treatment of the derivative as a hedge is no longer appropriate or intended. 

When hedge accounting is discontinued, subsequent changes in fair value of the derivative are recorded as 
non-interest income.  When a fair value hedge is discontinued, the hedged asset or liability is no longer 
adjusted for changes in fair value and the existing basis adjustment is amortized or accreted over the 
remaining life of the asset or liability.  When a cash flow hedge is discontinued but the hedged cash flows 
or forecasted transactions are still expected to occur, gains or losses that were accumulated in other 
comprehensive income into earnings over the same periods which the hedged transactions will affect 
earnings. 

Bank Premises, Equipment, and Software 

Buildings and related components are depreciated using the straight-line method with useful lives ranging 
from 5 to 40 years. Furniture, fixtures, software and equipment are depreciated using the straight- line or 
accelerated method with useful lives ranging from 3 to 10 years. 

Foreclosed Assets 

Foreclosed assets, which are included in other assets, represent assets acquired through loan foreclosure or 
other proceedings. Foreclosed assets are recorded at the lower of the amount of the loan or fair market value 
of the assets. Any write-down to fair market value at the time of the transfer to foreclosed assets is charged to 
the allowance for credit losses. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by 
management and the assets are carried at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. Revenue 
and expenses from operations and change in the valuation allowance are included in other operating expenses. 
Foreclosed assets totaled $0 and $4,223 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

Defined Benefit Plan 

The Bank funds amounts equal to pension costs accrued. 

Continued on next page 15 



 
 

   
 

 

   
 

 
  

 
  

  
 

 
 

  
  

 
 
 

    
 

  
   

   
 

   
  

   
   

     
 

 
        

   
     

       
  

   

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

Income Taxes 

Bank of North Dakota is a governmental agency of the State of North Dakota and, as such, is not subject to 
federal or state income taxes. 

Comprehensive Income 

Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive income.  Other comprehensive 
income includes unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale and unrealized gains and losses 
on interest rate swaps which are also recognized as separate components of equity. 

NOTE 2 - RESTRICTION AND CONCENTRATION ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS 

The Federal Reserve announced the reduction of the reserve requirement ratio to zero percent across all 
deposit tiers, effective March 26, 2020.  Depository institutions that were required to maintain deposits in 
a Federal Reserve Bank account to satisfy reserve requirements will no longer be required to do so. 

The Bank has depository relationships where it is a requirement of the other institution in order to have a 
business relationship.  Deposits at these institutions are insured up to $250,000 with the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation except for deposits with the Federal Reserve Bank and the Federal Home Loan Bank. 
The amount of cash deposits not covered by FDIC insurance was $31,943 and $42,977 as of December 31, 
2024 and 2023, respectively.  Of these amounts, $28,982 and $39,562 were deposited at the Federal Reserve 
Bank. 

H.B. 1003, Section 10 of the sixty-eighth legislative session states the Office of Management and Budget 
shall transfer $5,500 from the strategic investment and improvements fund to the economic diversification 
research fund, the sum of which is appropriated to the Bank of North Dakota for the purpose of providing 
grants to institutions under the control of the state board of higher education, for the biennium beginning 
July 1, 2023, and ending June 30, 2025, as requested by the commissioner of higher education. As of 
December 31, 2023, SIIF has transferred $5,500. 

Continued on next page 16 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

    
 

  
  

 

 
 

   
   

 

 

     
                                                           
                                                                                   
                                                   

     

 

     
                                                               
                                                                                     
                                                       

     

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

NOTE 3 - SECURITIES 

The following summarizes the amortized cost, gross unrealized gain, gross unrealized losses, fair value and 
allowance for credit losses of available-for-sale debt securities at December 31, 2024 and 2023: 

Amortized 
Cost 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 

Allowance 
for Credit 

Losses 
Fair 

Value 

DECEMBER 31, 2024 

Debt securities available for sale 
US Treasury 
U.S. government agencies 
States and municipalities 
Mortgage-backed 

$ 908,898 
291,783 

1,000 
3,086,318 

$ - $ 19,850 
1,404 6,597 

- -
7,430 67,885 

$ - $ 889,048 
- 286,590 
- 1,000 
- 3,025,863 

$ 4,287,999 $ 8,834 $ 94,332 $ - $ 4,202,501 

Amortized 
Cost 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Gains 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 

Allowance 
for Credit 

Losses 
Fair 

Value 

DECEMBER 31, 2023 

Debt securities available for sale 
US Treasury 
U.S. government agencies 
States and municipalities 
Mortgage-backed 

$ 1,543,949 
346,250 

1,000 
2,113,602 

$ - $ 56,691 
2,213 13,373 

- -
10,043 77,327 

$ - $ 1,487,258 
- 335,090 
- 1,000 
- 2,046,318 

$ 4,004,801 $ 12,256 $ 147,391 $ - $ 3,869,666 

There were $1,496,309 and $1,501,836 of debt securities pledged as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 for 
other required pledging purposes. FHLB stock totaling $27,687 and $7,243 as of December 31, 2024 and 
2023, respectively, was pledged on the FHLB advances (Note 8). 

Continued on next page 17 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
   

 

 
    

 
   

      
   

  
 

 
 

  
              
                    
                    

  

      
                                                               
                                                                                                                      
                                              

      

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities by contractual maturity at December 31, 2024, follows: 

Available for Sale 

Amortized Fair 
Cost Value 

Due in one year or less $ 880,044 $ 860,953 
Due in one to five years 2,712,639 2,652,724 
Due from five to ten years 569,772 564,791 
Due after ten years 125,544 124,033 

$ 4,287,999 $ 4,202,501 

There were no sales of available-for-sale securities during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

The following tables shows the gross unrealized losses and fair value of the Bank's available-for-sale 
securities with unrealized losses for which an allowance for credit losses has not been recorded, aggregated 
by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized 
loss position. Securities at December 31, 2024 are as follows: 

Less Than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months Total 

Gross 
Unrealized 

DECEMBER 31, 2024 Losses 
Fair 

Value 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 
Fair 

Value 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Losses 
Fair 

Value 

Debt securities available for sale 
US Treasury $ - $ 2,135 $ 19,850 $ 886,893 $ 19,850 $ 889,028 
U.S. government agencies 427 59,900 6,170 176,338 6,597 236,238 
States and municipalities - - - - - -
Mortgage-backed 15,828 888,149 52,057 1,439,536 67,885 2,327,685 

$ 16,255 $ 950,184 $ 78,077 $ 2,502,767 $ 94,332 $ 3,452,951 

Continued on next page 18 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

 

 
 

    
  

   
 

  
  

  
    

 
 

  
       

      
 

     
       

       
    

      

                                                                                                                      

      

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

Securities at December 31, 2023 were as follows: 

Less Than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months Total 

Gross Gross Gross 
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair 

DECEMBER 31, 2023 Losses Value Losses Value Losses Value 

Debt securities available for sale 
US Treasury $ 3 $ 621 $ 56,688 $ 1,486,638 $ 56,691 $ 1,487,259 
U.S. government agencies 4 6,272 13,369 249,063 13,373 255,335 
States and municipalities - - - - - -
Mortgage-backed 816 70,786 76,511 1,660,061 77,327 1,730,847 

$ 823 $ 77,679 $ 146,568 $ 3,395,762 $ 147,391 $ 3,473,441 

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 no ACL was established for available-for-sale securities. Unrealized 
losses as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 are a result of expected fluctuations in the bond market primarily 
driven by changes in market interest rate. 

As December 31, 2024 and 2023 unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities are primarily composed 
of securities that are directly or implicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and are highly rated by major 
rating agencies with a history of no credit losses. Timely payments of principal and interest are expected. 
Obligations of states and political subdivisions are of high credit quality, with a total of 100% rated AA or 
higher. All issuers continue to make timely principal and interest payments and financial statements are 
periodically reviewed as part of post-purchase analysis. The decline in value in any of these securities is 
deemed to be temporary and not attributable to credit losses. Furthermore, the Bank does not intend to sell, 
and it is likely that management will not be required to sell, these securities prior to their anticipated 
recovery, and the decline in fair value is largely due to changes in interest rates and other market conditions. 

Management evaluates debt securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, 
and more frequently when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to 
(1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition 
and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Bank to retain its investment in 
the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. 

Continued on next page 19 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
    

 
    

 

 
 

    
 

 
 

          
           

 
 

    
   

     
     

  
      

     
  

  

                              
                              
                        
                             

  

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

NOTE 4 - LOANS 

The composition of the loan portfolio as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 is as follows: 

2024 2023 

Commercial $ 4,049,998 $ 3,644,897 
Student 
Residential 
Agricultural 

Allowance for credit losses 

1,011,506 
286,938 
794,513 

6,142,955 
(106,535) 

1,063,453 
316,153 
734,237 

5,758,740 
(99,865) 

$ 6,036,420 $ 5,658,875 

Unamortized deferred student loan costs totaled $14,650 and $16,836 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively. Net unamortized loan premiums and discounts, including purchased servicing rights, on 
residential loans totaled ($5) and ($28) as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

In the normal course of business, overdrafts of deposit accounts are reclassified as loans. There were $0 
overdrafts of deposit accounts as of December 31, 2024. There were $891 overdrafts of deposit accounts 
as of December 31, 2023. 

For purposes of determining the allowance for credit losses, the Bank has segmented certain loans in the 
portfolio by product type. Loans are segmented into the following pools: commercial, agricultural, 
residential real estate, and student loans. The Bank also sub-segments the commercial and agricultural 
segments into classes based on the associated risks within those segments. Commercial loans are divided 
into three classes: commercial participations, bank stock, and all other business loans (including PACE). 
Agricultural loans are also divided into three classes: farm & ranch, farm real estate, and all other farm 
loans. Each class of loan exercises significant judgment to determine the estimation method that fits the 
credit risk characteristics of its portfolio segment. 

Continued on next page 20 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
     

 
 

 
 

  
     

  
 
 

     
                                                               
                                                                           
                                                          

     

     
                                                                
                                                                
                                                                      
                                                                            
                                                                

     

  
                           
                   

  

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

The following tables present the activity in the ACL by portfolio segment for the years ended December 
31, 2024 and 2023: 

2024 

Commercial Agricultural Residential Student TOTAL 

Beginning Balance: 
Charge-offs 
Recoveries 
Provision 

$ 87,562 
(4,970) 

312 
9,640 

$ 10,878 
(2,052) 

399 
3,632 

$ 1,425 
-
-

(291) 

$ -
-
-
-

$ 99,865 
(7,022) 

711 
12,981 

Ending Balance $ 92,544 $ 12,857 $ 1,134 $ - $ 106,535 

2023 

Commercial Agricultural Residential Student TOTAL 

Beginning Balance: 
Transfer to ACL on off-balance shee
Impact of adopting ASC 326 
Charge-offs 
Recoveries 
Provision 
Ending Balance 

t reserve 
$ 94,886 

(13,774) 
(2,613) 
(3,402) 
3,013 
9,452 

$ 87,562 

$ 12,400 
(422) 
(697) 

-
-

(403) 
$ 10,878 

$ 1,466 
-

167 
(15) 

-
(193) 

$ 1,425 

$ 

$ 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 108,752 
(14,196) 
(3,143) 
(3,417) 
3,013 
8,856 

$ 99,865 

In addition to the ACL on loans, the Bank has established an ACL on off-balance sheet exposures of 
$10,568 and $12,847 at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The following table presents the activity 
in the ACL on off-balance sheet exposures for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

2024 2023 

Beginning Balance $ 12,847 $ -
Impact of adopting ASC 326 - 14,196 
Reversals to ACL recorded as provision for credit losses (2,279) (1,349) 

Ending Balance $ 10,568 $ 12,847 

Continued on next page 21 



 
 

   
 

 

   
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

The Bank’s internally assigned ratings are as follows: 

Risk Code Description 

Exceptional 1 Loan considered prime on the basis of very substantial financial capacity with 
minimal risk of non payment. 

Excellent 2 Loan considered sound on the basis of strong financial capacity with little or no 
apparent weakness and very limited risk of non payment. The probability of 
serious financial deterioration is highly unlikely. 

Good 3 Loan may reveal weaknesses in some areas, however, not of a serious nature and 
the debt remains collectible in its entirety. The collateral may be characterized as 
being less marketable than that of a higher rated borrower. 

Acceptable 4 Bank feels that the credit risk is acceptable, but may require above average officer 
attention. Credit in this class exhibit the earliest signs of potential problems. A 
greater reliance will be placed on the quality and marketability of the underlying 
collateral  as the cash flow may be unproven or somewhat erratic. 

Special Mention 5 May be bankable based on certain types of loan programs which fall within the 
Bank's mission. This type of loan may be currently protected, but has potential 
unrealized weaknesses. The loan will require close monitoring as deterioration 
remains a strong possibility. The potential problems must remain manageable and 
must not pose a serious threat to repayment. 

Substandard 6 Well defined weaknesses jeopardize orderly repayment. The loan is no longer 
protected by sound net worth or repayment capacity of the borrower.  Even though 
elements of loss are present, the borrower can potentially repay if deficiencies are 
corrected. Close monitoring of this type of loan is extremely important to prevent 
loss to the Bank. 

Doubtful 7 Loan had deteriorated to the point where collection or liquidation in full on the basis 
of current information, conditions and values is highly questionable and improbable. 
A doubtful classification is warranted during this period of quantifying/defining the 
amount of exposure or loss. A well defined corrective action or liquidation plan 
should be developed and implemented as soon as possible to limit further loss 
potential for the Bank. 

Loss 8 Loan is considered uncollectible and of such value that it should be charged-off. 
This classification does not mean that the asset has no recovery or salvage value. 

Continued on next page 22 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
    

    
  

 
    

    
 

    

     
                                                                                 
                                                          
                                            
                                             
                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                                     
                                                                                                       

                                                                                            
     

 

    
                                                                       
                                                                 
                                                          
                                                          
                                                               
                                                                 
                                                                        
                                                                                   

                                       
    

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

The following tables represents credit exposures by internally assigned risk ratings for the years ended 
December 31, 2024 and 2023. The rating analysis estimates the capability of the borrower to repay the 
contractual obligations of the loan agreements as scheduled or at all.  The Bank’s internal credit risk rating 
is based on experiences with similarly rated loans. Credit risk ratings are refreshed periodically as they 
become available, at which time management analyzes the resulting scores, as well as other external 
statistics and factors, to track loan performance. 

2024 

Business Loans 
Commercial (Including Farm & Farm Real 

Risk Rating Participations Bank Stock PACE) Ranch Estate 
No assigned risk rating $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
1 3,847 - 140,563 16 -
2 17,279 1,776 13,211 17,039 6,130 
3 746,131 319,723 333,067 106,973 114,791 
4 1,534,066 51,157 490,680 76,168 251,241 
5 100,153 19,486 37,456 18,146 20,718 
6 47,829 - 33,328 1,271 7,641 
7 4,885 - 2,744 94 -
8 - - - - -
Loan types excluded 
from allowance - - 152,617 - -
Total $ 2,454,190 $ 392,142 $ 1,203,666 $ 219,707 $ 400,521 

All Other Residential 
Risk Rating Farm Loans Real Estate Student Loans Total 
No assigned risk rating $ - $ 286,713 $ - $ 286,713 
1 - - - 144,426 
2 4,820 - - 60,255 
3 46,031 - - 1,666,716 
4 81,293 - - 2,484,605 
5 4,576 - - 200,535 
6 6,612 - - 96,681 
7 51 - - 7,774 
8 - - - -
Loan types excluded 
from allowance 30,902 225 1,011,506 1,195,250 
Total $ 174,285 $ 286,938 $ 1,011,506 $ 6,142,955 

Continued on next page 23 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

  

     
                                                                                      
                                                                     
                                                         
                                                      
                                                                        
                                                                         
                                                                                          
                                                                                

                                                                                             
     

 

    
                                                                         
                                                                    
                                                              
                                                              
                                                                 
                                                                  
                                                                          
                                                                                   

                                              
    

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

2023 

All Other 
Commercial Business Loans Farm Real 

Risk Rating Participations Bank Stock (Including PACE) Farm & Ranch Estate 
No assigned risk rating $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
1 4,022 - 147,526 - -
2 4,353 243 14,170 12,031 4,564 
3 701,839 357,502 257,664 67,989 97,951 
4 1,325,866 41,370 455,905 72,273 260,633 
5 63,490 - 30,869 7,397 22,207 
6 80,755 - 10,342 1,665 4,234 
7 5,321 - 32 101 -
8 - - - -
Loan types excluded 
from allowance - - 143,628 - -
Total $ 2,185,646 $ 399,115 $ 1,060,136 $ 161,456 $ 389,589 

All Other Farm Residential 
Risk Rating Loans Real Estate Student Loans Total 
No assigned risk rating $ - $ 315,925 $ - $ 315,925 
1 - - - 151,548 
2 4,706 - - 40,067 
3 41,239 - - 1,524,184 
4 90,263 - - 2,246,310 
5 11,922 - - 135,885 
6 3,292 - - 100,288 
7 56 - - 5,510 
8 - - - -
Loan types excluded 
from allowance 31,714 228 1,063,453 1,239,023 
Total $ 183,192 $ 316,153 $ 1,063,453 $ 5,758,740 

Continued on next page 24 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

       
              

    
 

 

    

 
                                

    
 

 
      
      
      
      

      
      
      

    

 
                                                

 
 

 

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

The following tables include an aging analysis of the recorded investment of past due financing receivables 
as of December 31, 2024 and 2023.  Also included are loans that are 90 days or more past due with interest 
and principal still accruing, because they are (1) well-secured and in the process of collection, (2) real estate 
loans or loans exempt under regulatory rules from being classified as nonaccrual or (3) student loans where 
accrued interest is guaranteed. 

2024 

31-60 days 61 - 90 days Greater than Total Past 
Loan Class past due past due 90 days Due Current Total Loans 

Commercial 
Participations $ 17,150 $ 7,288 $ 16,556 $ 40,994 $ 2,413,196 $ 2,454,190 
Bank Stock             3,298  - -             3,298        388,844        392,142 
All other Business 
Loans (Including 
PACE)           13,752                170             1,083           15,005     1,188,661     1,203,666 
Farm & Ranch             1,091                667             1,603             3,361        216,346        219,707 
Farm Real Estate             2,477                521             3,245             6,243        394,278        400,521 
All other Farm loans                160                   51                531                742        173,543        174,285 
Residential Real 
Estate             6,090             3,103             2,835           12,028        274,910        286,938 
Student Loans             9,015             4,249           15,276           28,540        982,966     1,011,506 
Totals  $      53,033  $      16,049  $      41,129  $    110,211  $ 6,032,744  $ 6,142,955 

2023 

31-60 days 61 - 90 days Greater than Total Past 
Loan Class past due past due 90 days Due Current Total Loans 

Commercial 
Participations $ 3,151 $ 3,732 $ 22,864 $ 29,747 $ 2,155,899 $ 2,185,646 
Bank Stock  - - - -          399,115          399,115 
All other Business 
Loans (Including 
PACE)              1,135                 781              2,249              4,165       1,055,971       1,060,136 
Farm & Ranch            22,434 - -            22,434          139,022          161,456 
Farm Real Estate              3,463 -                 476              3,939          385,650          389,589 
All other Farm loans                 440                 183                 888              1,511          181,681          183,192 
Residential Real 
Estate              7,743              3,592              2,644            13,979          302,174          316,153 
Student Loans            11,095              5,306            15,325            31,726       1,031,727       1,063,453 
Totals  $        49,461 $        13,594 $        44,446 $      107,501 $   5,651,239 $   5,758,740 

Continued on next page 25 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
   

    

 
 

        
 

  
 

    
 

    
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

   
                                 
                                 
                                         
                                         
                                         
                                       

   

 

 

 
 

   
                                      
                                         
                                             
                                           
                                          
                                        

   

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

The following table presents the amortized cost basis of loans on nonaccrual status and loans past due over 
89 days still accruing as of the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

December 31, 2024 

Nonaccrual 

Nonaccrual 
With No 

Allowance 
for Cre dit 

Loss 

Loans 
Past Due 
Over 89 
Days Sill 
Accruing 

Commercial Participations 
All Other Business Loans (Including PACE) 
Farm & Ranch 
Farm Real Estate 
All Other Farm Loans 
Residential Real Estate 
Student Loans 

$ 5,117 $ 3,984 
4,828 410 

359 359 
- -

582 501 
- -
- -

$ 12,544 
494 

1,244 
3,245 

-
2,835 

15,276 

Total $ 10,886 $ 5,254 $ 35,638 

December 31, 2023 
Nonaccrual 

With No 
Allowance 
for Credit 

Nonaccrual Loss 

Loans Past 
Due Over 

89 Days Sill 
Accruing 

Commercial Participations 
All Other Business Loans (Including PACE) 
Farm & Ranch 
Farm RE 
All Other Farm Loans 
Residential Real Estate 
Student Loans 

$ 28,031 $ 6,020 
2,255 390 

432 432 
- -

86 -
- -
- -

$ -
2 
-

476 
802 

2,644 
15,325 

Total $ 30,804 $ 6,842 $ 19,249 

The Bank recognized $174 and $109 of interest income on nonaccrual loans during the years ended 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The Bank charged-off $89 and $353 of accrued interest during 
the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

Accruing loans 90 days or more past due include guaranteed student loans of $15,276 and $15,325 as of 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The Bank is entitled to reimbursement from the guarantor 270 
days after default in the case of a student loan payable in monthly installments and 330 days in the case of 
a student loan payable in less frequent installments. 

Continued on next page 26 



 
 

   
 

 

   
 

 
    

 
 

   
 

       
   

    
 

         
    

    
 

 
           
     

   
 

 
   

    
              

  
  

 
            

     
  

     
  

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

Residential loans of $2,835 and $2,644 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, are also included 
in accruing loans 90 days or more past due. 

A loan which meets any of the following criteria must be placed in a non-accrual status: 

• The following loans on which the principal and interest is 90 or more days past due:  Unsecured 
loans, loans secured by other than real property, loans secured by a mortgage on commercial real 
estate, loans secured by a farm real estate mortgage, loans secured by a conventional residential 
real estate mortgage. 

• A loan where the borrower has filed for bankruptcy or where the lead bank or the Bank deems itself 
insecure due to the financial condition of the borrower. 

• A loan which the North Dakota Department of Financial Institutions recommends to be placed in 
a non-accrual status. 

A loan which meets the criteria for non-accrual status may be retained in accrual status if it is (1) guaranteed 
or insured by the state or federal government or secured by collateral with a fair market value sufficient to 
discharge the outstanding principal and interest and (2) in the process of collection supported by a document 
source of collection. 

A loan which has been placed in a non-accrual status may be returned to an accrual status only if principal 
and interest are no longer due and unpaid and if current principal and interest appear to be collectable.  In 
addition, the loan must either be secured by collateral with a fair market value sufficient to discharge the 
outstanding principal and interest or the borrower must demonstrate through a documented repayment plan 
the ability to discharge the outstanding principal and interest. 

In the event of a foreclosure a residential loan guaranteed by the Federal Housing Administration will be 
paid in full and the property title is transferred to them with the exception of flooded properties.  The 
Department of Veterans Affairs has the option of paying their guaranty percentage and the Bank keeps the 
foreclosed property as well as any gain or loss from the sale or they can pay the loan in full and title is 
transferred to them. 

Continued on next page 27 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
   

  
  

 
 
 
 

     
                                                                                               
                                                             
                                                                               
                                                                                               
                                                                               
                                                                                     
                                                                                               

     

     
                                                                                               
                                                                      
                                                                                
                                                                                 
                                                                          
                                                                                       
                                                                                               

     

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

The following table presents the amortized cost basis of collateral dependent loans, by the primary collateral 
type, which are individually evaluated to determine expected credit losses, and the related ACL allocated 
to these loans as of December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

December 31, 2024 

Commercial Participations 
Bank Stock 
All Other Business Loans (Including PACE) 
Farm & Ranch 
Farm Real Estate 
All Other Farm Loans 
Residential Real Estate 
Student Loans 

Total 

Real Estate 

$ 5,373 
-

4,648 
359 

-
552 
674 

-

$ 11,606 

Equipment 

$ 262 
-

226 
-
-

30 
-
-

$ 518 

Other 

$ 1,272 
-

320 
94 

-
-
-
-

$ 1,686 

$ 

$ 

Total 

6,907 
-

5,194 
453 

-
582 
674 

-

13,810 

$ 

$ 

ACL 

1,430 
-

1,098 
15 

-
30 

-
-

2,573 

Commercial Participations 
Bank Stock 
All Other Business Loans (Including PACE) 
Farm & Ranch 
Farm Real Estate 
All Other Farm Loans 
Residential Real Estate 
Student Loans 

Total 

Real Estate 

$ 9,986 
-

2,271 
-

1,316 
1,770 

702 
-

$ 16,045 

Equipment 

$ 14,372 
-

152 
433 

-
468 

-
-

$ 15,425 

December 31, 2023 

Other 

$ 5,375 
-

76 
101 

-
-
-
-

$ 5,552 

$ 

$ 

Total 

29,733 
-

2,499 
534 

1,316 
2,238 

702 
-

37,022 

$ 

$ 

ACL 

4,988 
-

620 
23 

-
30 

-
-

5,661 

Continued on next page 28 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

    
    

 
   

       
 

 

 
 

    
  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

      
                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                              
                                                                                                              
                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                  

      

 

 
 

 
 

 

      
                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                
                                                                                                              
                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                  
                                                                                                                  

      

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

Occasionally, the Bank may modify loans to borrowers who are experiencing financial difficulty. Loan 
modifications to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty may be in the form of principal forgiveness, 
term extension, an other-than-insignificant payment delay, interest rate reduction, or combination thereof. 

The following tables present the amortized cost basis of loans that were both, experiencing financial 
difficulty and modified by loan type and type of modification for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 
2023. 

December 31, 2024 

Principal 
Forgiveness 

Payme nt 
Delay Te rm Re duction 

Interest Rate 

Combination 
Te rm 

Exte ns ion 
and Principal 
Forgiveness 

Combination 
Te rm 

Exte nsion 
and Inte rest 

Rate 

Percentage of 
Modifications 

Relative to 
Ye ar-End 
Balance 

Commercial Participations 
Bank Stock 
All Other Business Loans (Including PACE) 
Farm & Ranch 
Farm Real Estate 
All Other Farm Loans 
Residential Real Estate 
Student Loans 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 4,777 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 2,011 
-

106 
458 

-
-
-
-

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 

Total $ - $ 4,777 $ 2,575 $ - $ - $ - 0% 

December 31, 2023 

Principal 
Forgiveness 

Payment 
Delay Term 

Interest Rate 
Reduction 

Combination 
Term 

Extension and 
Principal 

Forgiveness 

Combination 
Term 

Extension and 
Interest Rate 

Percentage of 
Modifications 

Relative to 
Year-End 
Balance 

Commercial Participations 
Bank Stock 
All Other Business Loans (Including P
Farm & Ranch 
Farm Real Estate 
All Other Farm Loans 
Residential Real Estate 
Student Loans 

ACE) 

$ - $ 8,071 $ 4,278 
- - -
- 77 -
- - 359 
- 1,316 -
- - -
- - -
- - -

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

1% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 
0% 

Total $ - $ 9,464 $ 4,637 $ - $ - $ - 0% 

The Bank has no material commitments to lend additional funds to customers whose loans were classified 
as restructured at December 31, 2024 and 2023 to borrowers included in the tables above. 

Continued on next page 29 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

                    
                                      
                                      
                                      
                                      
                                      
                                      
                                      

                    

 

                    
                                      
                                      
                                      
                                      
                                      
                                      
                                      

                    

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

The following tables present the financial effect of the loan modifications presented above to the borrowers 
experiencing financial difficulty for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

December 31, 2024 

Principal 
Forgiveness 

Weighted 
Average 

Interest Rate 
Reduction 

We ighted 
Average 

Term 
Exte nsion 

(Yrs) 

Commercial Participations 
Bank Stock 
All Other Business Loans (Including PACE) 
Farm & Ranch 
Farm Real Estate 
All Other Farm Loans 
Residential Real Estate 
Student Loans 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

2 
-
1 
1 
-
-
-
-

$ - 0.00% 4 

December 31, 2023 

Principal 
Forgiveness 

Weighted 
Average 

Interest Rate 
Reduction 

Weighted 
Average Term 

Extension 
(Yrs) 

Commercial Participations 
Bank Stock 
All Other Business Loans (Including PACE) 
Farm & Ranch 
Farm RE 
All Other Farm Loans 
Residential Real Estate 
Student Loans 

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

5 
-
-
1 
-
-
-
-

$ - 0.00% 6 

Continued on next page 30 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

  
     

    
   

   
   

    
 

  
                                      
                           
                           
                                      
                             
                                      
                                      

  

  
                                      
                            
                              
                                      
                              
                                      
                                      

  

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

The Bank closely monitors the performance of loans modified to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty 
to understand the effectiveness of its loan modifications. All loans modified during the year ended 
December 31, 2024 are current. None of the loans modified for the period were in payment default during 
the year ended December 31, 2024. None of the loans modified in 2023 were in payment default during the 
year ended December 31, 2023. 

The following tables present loans purchased and sold during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 
2023. The Bank considers all newly originated participations as purchased loans, as reflected below. 

December 31, 2024 

Purchases Sales 

Commercial Participations 
Bank Stock 
All Other Business Loans (Including PACE) 
Farm & Ranch 
Farm Real Estate 
All Other Farm Loans 
Residential Real Estate 
Student Loans 

$ 642,936 
-

233,056 
126,423 

-
18,722 

-
-

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

Total $ 1,021,137 $ -

December 31, 2023 

Purchases Sales 

Commercial Participations 
Bank Stock 
All Other Business Loans (Including PACE) 
Farm & Ranch 
Farm Real Estate 
All Other Farm Loans 
Residential Real Estate 
Student Loans 

$ 652,294 
-

195,351 
76,091 

-
33,505 

-
-

$ -
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

Total $ 957,241 $ -

Continued on next page 31 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
    

 
            

              
 

 

 
       

   
       

 
 

 

  

            

        
        
            
            
                     
            
               
                     
               
                         
                         
            
            
                     
            
                      

  

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

NOTE 5 - LOAN SALES AND LOAN SERVICING 

BND has contracts to provide servicing of loans for others. These loans are not included in the 
accompanying balance sheets. The unpaid principal balances of loans serviced for others as of December 
31, 2024 and 2023 were as follows: 

2024 2023 

Student loans 
North Dakota Student Loan Trust $ 405 $ 472 

Residential loans 
Fannie Mae 15,291 17,455 

Other state fund loans 
School Construction Assistance Revolving Loan Fund 326,240 313,989 
Infrastructure Revolving Loan Fund 180,263 167,101 
Medical Facility Infrastructure Loan Fund 42,719 41,528 
Rebuilders Loan Program 26,663 32,246 
State Water Commission 506 539 
Water Infrastructure Revolving Loan Fund 64,362 43,708 
Board of University and School Lands 2,211 2,373 
Information Technology Department 443 695 
Department of Human Services 1,860 2,082 
Addiction Counseling Internship Loan Program 84 69 
Workforce Safety 31 40 
Clean Sustainable Energy 44,827 43,018 
Legacy Investment for Technology Fund 31,901 25,608 
Bulk Propane Storage 975 571 
Legacy Infrastructure Loan Fund 92,066 49,169 
Rural Workforce Initiative to Support Housing 1,670 -

$ 832,517 $740,663 

Under existing student loan servicing agreements, the Bank generally agrees to reimburse lenders for all 
principal, accrued interest and special allowance which the lender has been denied if the denial resulted 
from the actions or inactions of the Bank. Under the existing residential loan servicing agreement with 
Fannie Mae, the Bank will indemnify Fannie Mae and hold them harmless against all losses, damages, 
judgments, or legal expenses that result from the Bank’s failure in any way to perform its services and 
duties. 

Continued on next page 32 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
    

 
  

 

 
   

 
 

    
 

    

 

  
                  
                           
                           
                     
                  

                  

  

 
       
       

 

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

NOTE 6 - BANK PREMISES, EQUIPMENT, AND SOFTWARE 

A summary of the cost and accumulated depreciation of premises and equipment follows: 

2024 2023 

Land 
Building 
Equipment 
Furniture 
Software 

$ 2,449 
10,388 

869 
815 

6,491 
21,012 

$ 2,449 
10,342 

789 
817 

6,491 
20,888 

Less accumulated depreciation 12,351 11,739 

$ 8,661 $ 9,149 

Depreciation expense totaled $650 and $547 for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

NOTE 7 - DEPOSITS 

As of December 31, 2024, the scheduled maturities of certificates of deposits are as follows: 
One year or less $ 4,543,032 
One to three years 274,467 
Over three years 566,098 

$ 5,383,597 

Continued on next page 33 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
    

 
  

 

 
 

  
  

 

 
 

  
         

        
    

 
   

 
 

    
 

 
 

  

  

   

  
                       
                     
                                 
                            

  

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

NOTE 8 - FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK (FHLB) ADVANCES 

Short and long-term debt consists of: 

2024 2023 

Federal Home Loan Bank advances - short-term $ 480,000 $ 25,000 

$ 480,000 $ 25,000 

A summary, by years, of future minimum payments required to amortize the outstanding short and long-
term debt is as follows: 

Principal Interest Total 

2025 $ 480,000 $ 123 $ 480,123 

The FHLB short-term advances outstanding as of December 31, 2024, matured in January 2025 and had a 
fixed interest rate of 4.62%. The FHLB short-term advances outstanding as of December 31, 2023, matured 
in January 2024 and had a fixed interest rate of 5.64%. All FHLB advances must be secured by minimum 
qualifying collateral maintenance levels. Residential, agriculture, and commercial loans with carrying 
values of $1,021,616 and $864,435 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, are currently being 
used as security to meet these minimum levels. 

NOTE 9 - OTHER ASSETS 

2024 2023 

Fees receivable 
Securities receivable 
Interest rate swap receivable 
Foreclosed assets 
Prepaid expenses, deferred expenses and other receivables 

$ 1,265 
1,679 

64,965 
-

1,134 

$ 1,080 
28,421 
52,125 
4,223 

835 

$ 69,043 $ 86,684 

Continued on next page 34 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
    

 
 

 

 
 

    
 

  
   

  
    

 
 

  
 

   
        

 
 

  
   

        
   

 
      

    
   

 
 

      
       

  
  

 

  
                         
                     
                         

  

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

NOTE 10 - OTHER LIABILITIES 

Other Liabilities consist of: 

2024 2023 

Interest payable 
Salary and benefits payable 
ACL on unfunded loan commitments 
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 

$ 9,443 
3,413 

10,568 
1,650 

$ 8,234 
3,154 

12,847 
3,948 

$ 25,074 $ 28,183 

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLAN 

NDPERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers substantially all 
employees of the State of North Dakota, its agencies and various participating political subdivisions. 
NDPERS provides for pension, death and disability benefits. The cost to administer the plan is financed 
through the contributions and investment earnings of the plan. 

Responsibility for administration of the NDPERS defined benefit pension plan is assigned to a Board 
comprised of nine members.  The Board consists of a Chairman, who is appointed by the Governor; one 
member appointed by the Attorney General; one member appointed by the State Health Officer; three 
members elected by the active membership of the NDPERS system, one member elected by the retired 
public employees and two members of the legislative assembly appointed by the chairman of the legislative 
management. 

Death and disability benefits are set by statute.  If an active member dies with less than three years of service 
for the Main System, a death benefit equal to the value of the member’s accumulated contributions, plus 
interest, is paid to the member’s beneficiary. If the member has earned more than three years of credited 
service for the Main System, the surviving spouse will be entitled to a single payment refund, life-time 
monthly payments in an amount equal to 50% of the member’s accrued normal retirement benefit, or 
monthly payments in an amount equal to the member’s accrued 100% Joint and Survivor retirement benefit 
if the member had reached normal retirement age prior to date of death.  If the surviving spouse dies before 
the member’s accumulated pension benefits are paid, the balance will be payable to the surviving spouse’s 
designated beneficiary. 

Eligible employees who become totally disabled after a minimum of 180 days of service receive monthly 
disability benefits that are equal to 25% of their final average salary with a minimum benefit of $100. To 
qualify under this section, the member has to become disabled during the period of eligible employment 
and apply for benefits within one year of termination.  The definition for disabled is set by the NDPERS in 
the North Dakota Administrative Code. 

Continued on next page 35 



 
 

   
 

 

   
 

 
       

   
       

     
       

 
           

   
 

 
     

     
           

 
 

   
     

   
    

 
      

  
  

     
       
       
        

        
     

  
 

        
  

    
   

 
      

   
          

    
              

    
    

     
  

   

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

Benefits are set by statute.  NDPERS has no provisions or policies with respect to automatic and ad hoc 
post-retirement benefit increases.  Member of the Main System are entitled to unreduced monthly pension 
benefits beginning when the sum of age and years of credited service equal or exceed 85 (Rule of 85), or at 
normal retirement age (65).  For members hired on or after January 1, 2016 the Rule of 85 was replaced 
with the Rule of 90 with a minimum age of 60.  The monthly pension benefit is equal to 2.00% of their 
average monthly salary, using the highest 36 months out of the last 180 months of service, for each year of 
service. For members hired on or after January 1, 2020 the 2.00% multiplier was replaced with a 1.75% 
multiplier.  The plan permits early retirement at ages 55-64 with three or more years of service. 

Members may elect to receive the pension benefits in the form of a single life, joint and survivor, term-
certain annuity, or partial lump sum with ongoing annuity.  Members may elect to receive the value of their 
accumulated contributions, plus interest, as a lump sum distribution upon retirement or termination, or they 
may elect to receive their benefits in the form of an annuity. For each member electing an annuity, total 
payment will not be less than the members’ accumulated contributions plus interest. 

Member and employer contributions paid to NDPERS are set by statute and are established as a percent of 
salaries and wages.  Member contribution rates are 7% and employer contribution rates are 7.12% of 
covered compensation.  For members hired on or after January 1, 2020 member contribution rates are 7% 
and employer contribution rates are 8.26% of covered compensation. 

The member’s account balance includes the vested employer contributions equal to the member’s 
contributions to an eligible deferred compensation plan. The minimum member contribution is $25 and the 
maximum may not exceed the following: 

1 to 12 months of service – Greater of one percent of monthly salary or $25 
13 to 24 months of service – Greater of two percent of monthly salary or $25 
25 to 36 months of service – Greater of three percent of monthly salary or $25 
Longer than 36 months of service – Greater of four percent of monthly salary or $25 

Bank of North Dakota’s required and actual contributions to NDPERS for the fiscal years ending December 
31, 2024 and 2023 were approximately $1,940 and $1,623, respectively, and are charged directly to 
operations.  There were no surcharges paid by the Bank to the Plan in 2024 and 2023. 

Effective January 1, 2025, the Main Defined Benefit Retirement Plan closed to newly enrolled new 
employees hired January 1, 2025 or later. This closure is in accordance with House Bill 1040 passed in the 
68th Legislative Assembly. NDPERS announced Define Contribution (DC) 2025 Tier 3 as the approved 
retirement plan for newly enrolled new employees hired January 1, 2025 or later. 

Specific plan assets and accumulated benefit information for the Bank’s portion of the fund is not available. 
Under the Employee Retirement Income and Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”), a contributor to a multi-
employer pension plan may be liable in the event of complete or partial withdrawal for the benefit payments 
guaranteed under ERISA, but there is no intention to withdraw.  NDPERS operates as a multi-employer 
plan for accounting purposes and as a multiple-employer plan under ERISA and the Internal Revenue Code. 
There are no collective bargaining agreements in place that require contributions to the Plan.  As of 
December 31, 2024, and 2023, there were no funding improvement plans or rehabilitation plans 
implemented.  The Plan is a single plan under Internal Revenue Code 413(c) and, as a result, all of the 
assets stand behind all of the liabilities.  Accordingly, contributions made by a participating employer may 
be used to provide benefits to participants of other participating employers. 
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BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

NDPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and the required 
supplementary information for NDPERS.  The Bank’s contributions to the Plan do not represent more than 
5 percent of total contributions to the Plan as indicated in the Plan’s most recently available annual report 
as of June 30, 2024.  That report may be obtained by writing to NDPERS; 400 East Broadway, Suite 505; 
PO Box 1657; Bismarck, ND 58502-1657. 

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Legislative Action – Various legislative bills provide state agencies the authority to borrow money from 
the Bank of North Dakota during the biennium beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2025.  Following 
is a summary of legislative action and/or North Dakota Statute in effect: 

H.B. 1014, Section 11 – The Industrial Commission shall transfer to the general fund $140,000 from the 
current earnings and the accumulated undivided profits of the Bank of North Dakota during the biennium 
beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2025. The moneys must be transferred in the amounts and at 
the times requested by the Director of the Office of Management and Budget after consultation with the 
Bank of North Dakota president.  As of December 31, 2024, the Bank had transferred $0. 

H.B. 1014, Section 12 – The Bank shall transfer up to $39,000 from its current earnings and undivided 
profits to the Partnership in Assisting Community Expansion Fund during the biennium beginning July 1, 
2023 and ending June 30, 2025.  As of December 31, 2024, the Bank had transferred $29,000. 

H.B. 1014, Section 12 – The Bank shall transfer up to $5,000 from its current earnings and undivided profits 
to the Agriculture Partnership in Assisting Community Expansion Fund during the biennium beginning 
July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2025.  As of December 31, 2024, the Bank had transferred $4,000. 

H.B. 1014, Section 12 – The Bank shall transfer up to $1,000 from its current earnings and undivided profits 
to the Biofuels Partnership in Assisting Community Expansion Fund during the biennium beginning July 
1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2025.  As of December 31, 2024, the Bank had transferred $1,000. 

H.B. 1014, Section 12 – The Bank shall transfer up to $15,000 from its current earnings and undivided 
profits to the Beginning Farmer Revolving Loan Fund during the biennium beginning July 1, 2023 and 
ending June 30, 2025.  As of December 31, 2024, the Bank had transferred $3,000. 

H.B. 1014, Section 12 – The Bank shall transfer up to $1,500 from its current earnings and undivided profits 
to the University of North Dakota Small Business Development Center during the biennium beginning July 
1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2025.  As of December 31, 2024, the Bank had transferred $1,500. 

H.B. 1003, Section 7 – The Bank shall transfer the sum of $1,500 or so much of the sum as may be necessary 
from its current earnings and undivided profits to the State Board of Higher Education Scholarships during 
the biennium beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2025.  As of December 31, 2024, the Bank had 
transferred $800. 
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BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

H.B. 1003, Section 8 – The Bank shall transfer the sum of $3,400 or so much of the sum as may be necessary 
from its current earnings and undivided profits to the Skilled Workforce Student Loan Repayment Program 
Fund during the biennium beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2025.  As of December 31, 2024, 
the Bank had transferred $400. 

H.B. 1003, Section 9 – The Bank shall transfer the sum of $3,400 or so much of the sum as may be necessary 
from its current earnings and undivided profits to the Skilled Workforce Scholarship Fund during the 
biennium beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2025.  As of December 31, 2024, the Bank had 
transferred $1,000. 

H.B. 1012, Section 4 – The Department of Transportation may borrow from the Bank, up to $50,000, which 
is appropriated to the Department for matching federal funds that may become available, for the biennium 
beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2025.  As of December 31, 2024, there was no outstanding 
balance. 

H.B. 1012, Section 5 – The Department of Transportation may borrow from the Bank, up to $28,500, which 
is appropriated to the Department for the contingent loan authorization line item in section 1 of this Act for 
matching funds made available from the state of Minnesota for northern Red River Valley transportation 
projects, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2025.  As of December 31, 2024, 
there was no outstanding balance. 

H.B. 1242, Section 2 – The Bank of North Dakota shall transfer the sum of $20,000, or so much of the sum 
as may be necessary, from the Bank's current earnings and undivided profits to the Statewide Interoperable 
Radio Network fund during the biennium beginning July 1, 2023, and ending June 30, 2025. As of 
December 31, 2024, the Bank had transferred $20,000. 

H.B. 1003, Section 10 – The Office of Management and Budget shall transfer $5,500 from the strategic 
investment and improvements fund to the economic diversification research fund, the sum of which is 
appropriated to the Bank of North Dakota for the purpose of providing grants to institutions under the 
control of the State Board of Higher Education, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2023, and ending June 
30, 2025, as requested by the commissioner of higher education. As of December 31, 2024, SIIF had 
transferred $5,500. 

H.B. 1003, Section 13 – The legislative assembly authorizes the Mayville State University Old Main 
renovation project to be funded in two phases as provided under this section. The capital assets line item in 
subdivision 9 of section 1 of this Act includes the sum of $17,330, or so much of the sum as may be 
necessary, for phase 1 of the project. During the biennium beginning July 1, 2023, and ending June 30, 
2025, and continuing into the biennium beginning July 1, 2025, and ending June 30, 2027, the State Board 
of Higher Education may borrow the sum of $34,925, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, from the 
Bank of North Dakota for completion of phase 2 of the Mayville State University Old Main renovation 
project. The State Board of Higher Education shall seek funding from the sixty-ninth legislative assembly 
to repay the loan authorized under this section. As of December 31, 2024, no funds have been utilized. 
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BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

H.B. 1199, Section 2 – The Bank of North Dakota shall extend a line of credit not to exceed $68,276 to the 
Department of Career and Technical Education at the prevailing interest rate charged to North Dakota 
governmental entities, the sum of which is appropriated to the Department of Career and Technical 
Education for the purpose of providing grants to entities approved by the State Board for Career and 
Technical Education to build career academies through the statewide area and career center initiative grant 
program for the period beginning with the effective date of this Act, and ending June 30, 2025. The 
department may award funding provided in this section to foundations that are working with school districts 
on career academy projects approved by the state board for career and technical education. The department 
shall repay the line of credit and accrued interest from funding appropriated from the general fund in section 
1 of this Act and from funding appropriated from the federal coronavirus capital projects fund in section 1 
of chapter 548 of the 2021 Session Laws. If moneys available on June 30, 2025, are not sufficient to repay 
the line of credit, the department of career and technical education shall request from the sixty-ninth 
legislative assembly a deficiency appropriation to repay the line of credit. As of December 31, 2024, there 
was no outstanding balance. 

S.B. 2009, Section 10 – The Bank shall transfer the sum of $3,000 or so much of the sum as may be 
necessary from its current earnings and undivided profits to the Agriculture Commissioner for deposit in 
the Agriculture Products Utilization Commission Fund during the biennium beginning July 1, 2023 and 
ending June 30, 2025. As of December 31, 2024, the Bank had transferred $3,000. 

S.B. 2020, Section 11 – The Bank of North Dakota shall extend a line of credit not to exceed $100,000 at 
the prevailing interest rate charged to North Dakota government entities. The Department of Water 
Resources shall repay the line of credit from funds available in the Resources Trust Fund, Water 
Development Trust Fund, or other funds, as appropriated by the legislative assembly. The Department of 
Water Resources may access the line of credit, as necessary, to provide up to $50,000 for the Northwest 
Area Water Supply project and up to $50,000 for the Southwest Pipeline project during the biennium 
beginning July 1, 2023, and ending June 30, 2025. As of December 31, 2024, the there were no funds 
extended on the line. 

H.B. 1014, Section 23 – The Bank shall extend a line of credit not to exceed $390,000 to the industrial 
commission to support loans or loan guarantees issued from the Clean Sustainable Energy Fund. The 
interest rate associated with the line of credit must be the prevailing interest rate charged to North Dakota 
government entities. As of December 31, 2024, the Bank had extended $16,470. 

H.B. 1014, Section 8 – The sum of $1,818, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, included in the 
appropriation in subdivision 1 of section 1 of this Act, may be transferred from the entities within the control 
of the industrial commission or entities directed to make payments to the industrial commission fund for 
administrative services rendered by the commission. Transfers must be made during the biennium 
beginning July 1, 2023, and ending June 30, 2025, upon order of the commission. Transfers from the student 
loan trust fund must be made to the extent permitted by sections 54-17-24 and 54-17-25. As of December 
31, 2024, the Bank had transferred $275. 
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BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

Continuing Commitments and Contingent Liabilities 

H.B. 1025, Section 3 – It is the intent of the sixty-seventh legislative assembly that the Attorney General 
seek reimbursement from the federal government for the costs of responding to unlawful activity associated 
with the construction of the Dakota Access Pipeline. It is further the intent of the sixty-seventh legislative 
assembly that these reimbursements be used to repay the Bank of North Dakota loans authorized by the 
Emergency Commission and the Legislative Assembly which were obtained to provide the funding 
necessary to respond to the unlawful activity associated with the construction of the Dakota Access 
Pipeline.  It is the further intent of the sixty-seventh legislative assembly that the provisions of section 54-
16-13 apply to the loans, except that Emergency Commission approval does not apply. The unpaid principal 
balance as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 was $13,362 and $13,362, respectively. 

S.B. 2124, Section 1 – The Bank of North Dakota shall adopt rules to administer, manage, promote, and 
market the North Dakota Achieving a Better Life Experience Plan. The Bank shall ensure the North Dakota 
Achieving a Better Life Experience Plan is maintained in compliance with internal revenue service 
standards for qualified state disability expense programs. The Bank, as trustee of the North Dakota 
Achieving a Better Life Experience Plan, may impose an annual administrative fee to recover expenses 
incurred in connection with operation of the plan. Administrative fees received by the Bank are appropriated 
to the Bank on a continuing basis to be used as provided under this section. Money and assets in North 
Dakota Achieving a Better Life Experience Plan accounts or in qualified Achieving a Better Life 
Experience plan accounts in any state may not be considered for the purpose of determining eligibility to 
receive, or the amount of, any assistance or benefits from local or state means-tested programs. 

S.B. 2014, Section 17 – This bill is an amendment to Section 6-09-49 regarding the Infrastructure Revolving 
Loan Fund and provide definition for “essential infrastructure projects”.  No new funding was provided, 
and no other changes to the program were made.  The Infrastructure Revolving Loan Fund is a special fund 
in the State Treasury from which the Bank of North Dakota shall provide loans to political subdivisions for 
essential infrastructure projects. The Bank shall administer the Infrastructure Revolving Loan Fund. The 
maximum term of a loan made under this section is thirty years. A loan made from the Fund under this 
section must have an interest rate that does not exceed two percent per year. For purposes of this section, 
"essential infrastructure projects" means capital construction projects to construct new infrastructure or 
replace existing infrastructure, which provide the fixed installations necessary for the function of a political 
subdivision.  As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, outstanding loans totaled $180,263 and $167,101, 
respectively. 

S.B. 2018, Section 5 – The Bank of North Dakota shall extend a line of credit to the State Historical Society 
to provide funding to pay costs associated with the construction of a North Dakota Military Museum and 
related expansion projects for the State Historical Society. The line of credit may not exceed $20,000, and 
the interest rate associated with the line of credit must be the prevailing rate charged to North Dakota 
government entities. It is the intent of the sixty-eighth legislative assembly that the State Historical Society 
request funding from the sixty-ninth legislative assembly from the legacy earnings fund to repay the line of 
credit. As of December 31, 2024, the unpaid principal balance totaled $2,256. 
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BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

S.B. 2019, Section 3 – The Bank of North Dakota shall extend a line of credit not to exceed $70,000 to the 
Parks and Recreation Department for the Theodore Roosevelt Presidential Library project. The interest rate 
on the line of credit may not exceed the prevailing interest rate charged to North Dakota governmental 
entities. As of December 31, 2024, no funds have been utilized. 

S.B. 2272, Section 4 – Provides for the creation of the School Construction Assistance Revolving Loan 
Fund. The School Construction Assistance Revolving Loan Fund is a special revolving loan fund 
administered by the Bank of North Dakota. The Fund consists of all moneys appropriated or transferred to 
the Fund by the Legislative Assembly and all interest or other earnings of the Fund, and all repayments of 
loans made from the Fund. Moneys in the Fund, interest upon the moneys in the Fund, and payments to the 
Fund of principal and interest are appropriated to the Bank of North Dakota on a continuing basis for the 
purpose of providing low-interest school construction loans and for paying administrative costs, in 
accordance with this section. With the advice and consent of the Superintendent of Public Instruction, the 
Bank of North Dakota shall award the loans in accordance with a prioritization system that is based on a 
review of all applications filed during the twelve-month period preceding April 1st.  The maximum loan 
amount for which a school district may qualify is $10,000.  The term of the loan is twenty years, unless the 
board of the school district requests a shorter term in the written loan application. The interest rate of the 
loan may not exceed two percent per year.  The Bank may adopt policies and establish guidelines to 
administer this loan program in accordance with this section. The Bank of North Dakota may use a portion 
of the interest paid on the outstanding loans as a servicing fee to pay for administration costs which may 
not exceed one - half of one percent of the amount of the interest payment. The Bank of North Dakota shall 
deposit principal and interest payments made by school districts for loans under this section in the School 
Construction Assistance Revolving Loan Fund. The Bank of North Dakota shall arrange for the conduct of 
an annual audit of the School Construction Assistance Revolving Loan Fund, the cost of which must be 
paid from the Fund and which must be conducted by an independent accounting firm.  As of December 31, 
2024 and 2023, outstanding loans in the School Construction Assistance Revolving Loan Fund totaled 
$326,240 and $313,989, respectively. 

S.B. 2008, Section 4 – The Bank of North Dakota shall transfer from the Beginning Farmer Revolving Loan 
Fund to the Public Service Commission the sum of $900, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, 
included in the estimated income line item in section 1 of this Act to pay for costs associated with a rail rate 
complaint case. Transfers must be made during the biennium beginning July 1, 2023, and ending June 30, 
2025, upon order of the Commission. If any amounts are spent pursuant to this section, the Public Service 
Commission shall reimburse the Beginning Farmer Revolving Loan Fund using amounts available from 
damages or proceeds received, net of legal fees, from a successful outcome of a rail complaint case.  As of 
December 31, 2024, the Bank had transferred $0. 
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BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

State Water Commission 

Under chapter 61-02.1-04 of North Dakota Century Code, principal and interest on bonds issued are payable 
from transfers to be made and appropriated by the Legislative Assembly from the Water Development Trust 
Fund as provided in section 61-02.1-05, then from transfers to be made and appropriated by the Legislative 
Assembly from revenues in the Resources Trust Fund other than revenues from state taxes, then from 
appropriations of other available revenues in the then current biennium, and then from any other revenues 
the State Water Commission makes available during the then current biennium for that purpose, including 
any federal moneys received by the state for the construction of flood control or reduction projects to pay 
bonds issued for that project. If sufficient funds from these sources are not available, then from transfers to 
be made and appropriated by the Legislative Assembly from the first available current biennial earnings of 
the Bank of North Dakota not to exceed $6,500 per biennium prorated with any other bonds payable from 
transfers to be made and appropriated by the Legislative Assembly from the available current biennial 
earnings of the Bank of North Dakota, to be credited by the Trustee to the Fund established for paying 
principal and interest on the bonds under a trust indenture.  If the Bank has to provide a transfer to the State 
Water Commission to make principal and interest payments on these bonds, the State Water Commission 
would then have to request from the next Legislative Assembly funding to repay the transfer made by the 
bank.  As of December 31, 2024, the Bank has provided no such transfers. 

Farm Real Estate Loan Guarantee Program 

Chapter 6-09.7-09 provides that the Bank of North Dakota may guarantee the loan of money by banks, 
credit unions, lending institutions that are part of the farm credit system, and savings and loan associations 
in this state to eligible persons for the purchase of agricultural real estate or the restructuring of agricultural 
real estate loans, provided the transactions do not exceed a loan to value ratio of 80% and further provided 
that no single loan exceeds $400. The Bank may have no more than $8,000 in outstanding loan guarantees 
under this Program. The Bank may guarantee up to 75% of the amount of principal due the lender. The 
guarantee term may not exceed 5 years. As of December 31, 2024, and 2023, the Bank had guarantees 
outstanding totaling $0 and $0, respectively, and had no guarantee commitments outstanding, respectively, 
included in commitments to extend credit.  The Bank has not recorded a contingent liability related to the 
guarantee loan program as of December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

Self-Insurance Health Plan – Bank of North Dakota Line of Credit 

Chapter 54-52.1 provides that the Bank shall extend to the Public Employees' Retirement Board a line of 
credit not to exceed $50,000.  The Board shall repay the line of credit from health insurance premium 
revenue or repay the line of credit from other funds appropriated by the Legislative Assembly.  The Board 
may access the line of credit to the extent necessary to provide adequate claims payment funds, to purchase 
stop-loss coverage, and to defray other expenditures of administration of the self-insurance health plan.  As 
of December 31, 2024, the outstanding loan balance was $0. 
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BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

Invisible Reinsurance Pool – Bank of North Dakota Line of Credit 

Chapter 26.1-36.7-.07 provides that the Bank shall extend to the Reinsurance Association of North Dakota 
a line of credit not to exceed $25,000.  The Association shall repay the line of credit from assessments 
against insurers writing or otherwise issuing group health benefit plans in this state or from other funds 
appropriated by the Legislative Assembly.  As of December 31, 2024, the outstanding loan balance was $0. 

Establishment and Maintenance of Adequate Guarantee Funds – Use of Strategic Investment and 
Improvement Funds 

Chapter 6-.09.7-05 provides that the Bank shall establish and at all times maintain an adequate guarantee 
reserve fund in a special account at the Bank.  The Bank may request the Director of the Office of 
Management and Budget to transfer funds from the Strategic Investment and Improvement Fund (SIIF) 
created by this section 15-08.1-08 to maintain one hundred percent of the guarantee reserve fund balance. 
Transfers from SIIF may not exceed a total of $150,000.  Moneys in the guarantee reserve fund are available 
to reimburse lenders for guaranteed loans in default. The securities in which the moneys in the reserve fund 
may be invested must meet the same requirements as those authorized for investment under the State 
Investment Board.  The income from such investments must be made available for the costs of 
administering the program and must be deposited in the reserve fund. The amount of the reserves for all 
guaranteed loans must be determined by a formula that will assure, as determined by the Bank, an adequate 
amount of reserve.  As of December 31, 2024, the balance in the reserve fund was $32,241.    

Beginning Entrepreneur Loan Guarantee Program 

Chapter 6-09.15 provides that the Bank of North Dakota provide a Beginning Entrepreneur Loan Guarantee 
Program. The Program includes an agreement with a lender that in the event of default by a beginning 
entrepreneur under a note and mortgage or other loan or financing agreement, the Bank shall pay the lender 
the amount agreed upon up to 85% of the amount of principal due the lender on a loan at the time the claim 
is approved.  The total outstanding loans that the Bank may guarantee cannot exceed 5% of the Bank’s tier 
one capital as defined by the Department of Financial Institutions.  A lender may apply to the Bank for a 
loan guarantee for a loan up to $500. The term of the guarantee may not exceed five years.  As of December 
31, 2024, and 2023, the Bank has guarantees outstanding totaling $6,422 and $6,944, respectively, and had 
guarantee commitments outstanding of $21 and $309, respectively, included in commitments to extend 
credit.  The Bank has not recorded a contingent liability related to the guarantee loan program as of 
December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

Rebuilders Permanent Loan Fund 

H.B. 1187, Section 3 of the sixty-seventh legislative session combined the Small Employer Loan Fund with 
the Rebuilders Permanent Loan Fund. In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Bank of North Dakota 
created the Small Employer Loan Fund (SELF) to assist small businesses. The SELF program allowed 
businesses with a physical presence in North Dakota, and 10 full-time equivalents or less to borrow up to 
$50 at one percent interest over 120 months. The Bank received applications for assistance up to November 
30, 2020.  The Bank committed up to $50,000 of capital or so much as the sum as needed.  As of December 
31, 2024, the Bank transferred $30,000. 
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BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

Rural Workforce Initiative to Support Housing 

Bank of North Dakota shall administer the Rural Workforce Initiative to Support Housing (R-WISH) 
program. The intent of the program is to support rural communities with construction of market rate housing 
for workforce when a company is locating or expanding in a community of 20,000 and under in population. 

The program is designed to support projects that are challenged because of the disproportionate costs 
comparable to attainable market rents; project must demonstrate that traditional financing terms are 
unfeasible. The program may provide equity or other financing alternatives. The Bank shall have the ability 
to utilize up to $10,000 of capital for the program. As of December 31, 2024, the Bank transferred $1,670. 

NOTE 13 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Bank, because of its unique relationship with the State of North Dakota, is a party in many business 
transactions with other entities of state government. All state funds and funds of all state penal, education, 
and industrial institutions must be deposited in the Bank under state law. These transactions are a normal 
part of bank business and, accordingly, are included in the Bank’s financial statements. 

See Note 5 for disclosure relating to loans sold to other state funds and/or loans serviced for other state 
funds, including the North Dakota Student Loan Trust. 

Dakota Education Alternative Loans are fully guaranteed by the North Dakota Guaranteed Student Loan 
Program, which is administered by the Bank. The outstanding principal balance of these loans was $996,856 
and $1,046,618 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank holds loans and deposits of principal officers and directors and 
their affiliates. Outstanding principal balances of these loans held by the Bank as of December 31, 2024 
and 2023 amounted to $47,864 and $39,836, respectively.  Deposits and short-term borrowings held by the 
Bank were $18,542 and $30,355, respectively. 

On December 22, 2020, the Bank signed a Servicing Agreement with the North Dakota Housing Finance 
Agency (NDHFA) effective April 1, 2021, to transfer the Bank’s mortgage servicing to NDHFA. NDHFA 
paid the Bank the amount of the unamortized service release premium and services the mortgage loans and 
manages the premises in the event of foreclosure of any mortgage loans. As of year-end December 31, 
2021, the Bank received from NDHFA $1,077 in unamortized service release premiums and fees. NDHFA 
will service a total of $283,744 in loans from BND. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the outstanding 
balance of loans serviced by NDHFA was $171,691 and $189,846, respectively. Mortgage servicing fees 
paid to NDHFA for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 were $454 and $497, respectively. 
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BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

NOTE 14 - OFF-BALANCE-SHEET ACTIVITIES 

The Bank is a party to credit related financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course 
of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments 
to extend credit, financial standby letters of credit, and guarantees related to loan programs as discussed in 
Note 12. Such commitments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess 
of the amount recognized in the balance sheet. The Bank’s exposure to credit loss is represented by the 
contractual amount of these commitments. The Bank follows the same credit policies in making 
commitments as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments. 

As of December 31, 2024, and 2023, the following financial instruments were outstanding whose contract 
amounts represent credit risk: 

Contract Amount 

2024 2023 

Commitments to extend credit $ 2,057,613 $ 2,073,963 
Financial standby letters of credit 781,244 871,330 
Guarantees provided 6,443 7,253 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any 
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other 
termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to 
expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash 
requirements. The amount of collateral obtained by the Bank upon extension of credit is based on 
management’s credit evaluation of the customer. Collateral held may include accounts receivable, 
inventory, property, plant, and equipment, and income-producing commercial properties. 

Financial standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the 
performance of a customer to a third party. Those letters of credit are primarily issued to support public 
borrowing arrangements. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that 
involved in extending loan facilities to customers.  The Bank has segmented this category into three 
components: (1) letters of credit, (2) confirming letters of credit, and (3) letters of credit pledged for public 
deposits to North Dakota financial institutions.  

Continued on next page 45 



 
 

   
 

 

   
 

 
  

       
    

 
     

      
      

    
        

    
   

     
           

   
          

    
    

     
 

  
      

       
   

   
     
 

 
       

  
 
 

    
 

   
      

       
          

   
            

 

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

Letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a 
customer to a third party which require this type of facility. The maturities for these letters of credit range 
from one month to ten years, and the likelihood of funding any of these letters of credit is considered to be 
remote.  The Bank holds collateral supporting those commitments.  The Bank also has letters of credit with 
the North Dakota Public Finance Authority (NDPFA) with maturities ranging from 11 months to 22 
years. If the letters issued to the NDPFA were ever drawn upon, the NDPFA is legally obligated to 
reimburse the Bank from funds legally available, or from any appropriation made available from the 
Legislative Assembly after certification by the Industrial Commission.  The likelihood of funding any of 
these letters of credit is also considered to be remote.  Outstanding issued letters of credit as of December 
31, 2024 and 2023 were $26,189 and $27,278, respectively.  

Confirming letters of credit are issued to North Dakota financial institutions to support letters of credit they 
have issued but are still in need of backing from an institution with a long-term, high quality bond rating. In 
the event these letters were to be drawn upon, based on the terms of the agreement, the Bank would 
immediately withdraw funds from the institution’s correspondent bank account held at the Bank to cover 
the amount drawn.  These agreements generally have terms of 12 months or less. The likelihood of funding 
any of these confirming letters of credit is also considered to be remote.  Outstanding issued confirming 
letters of credit as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 were $3,964 and $5,584, respectively. 

Letters of credit pledged for public deposits to North Dakota financial institutions are issued to support 
public borrowing arrangements. These letters are fully collateralized by a pool of loans pledged to the 
Bank.  These agreements generally have terms of 12 months or less. Financial standby letters for public 
deposits by North Dakota banks totaled $481,970 and $572,975 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively.  The likelihood of funding any of these letters of credit is also considered to be remote.  These 
letters of credit are an authorized form of collateral for public deposits per North Dakota Century Code 21-
04-09. 

The Bank has not recorded a contingent liability related to off-balance sheet activity as of December 31, 
2024 and 2023. 

NOTE 15 - INTEREST RATE SWAP CONTRACTS 

Interest rate swap contracts are entered into primarily as an asset/liability management strategy of the Bank 
to help manage its interest rate risk position.  The primary risk associated with all swaps is the exposure to 
movements in interest rates and the ability of the counterparties to meet the terms of the contract.  The Bank 
is exposed to losses if the counterparty fails to make its payments under a contract in which the Bank is in 
a receiving status.  The Bank minimizes its risk by monitoring the credit standing of the counterparties. 
The Bank anticipates the counterparties will be able to fully satisfy their obligations under the remaining 
agreements.  These contracts are typically designated as cash flow hedges. 
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BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

The Bank has outstanding interest rate swap agreements with a notional amount totaling $500,000 and 
$500,000 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectfully, to convert variable rate federal funds and 
variable rate SOFR-indexed deposits into fixed-rate instruments over the term of the contracts. The notional 
amount of the interest rate swaps does not represent amounts exchanged by the parties. The amount 
exchanged is determined by reference to the notional amount and other terms of the individual interest rate 
swap agreements. These cash flow hedges were determined to be fully effective during all periods 
presented.  The Bank expects the hedges to remain fully effective during the remaining terms of the swaps. 

The following table summarizes the derivative financial instruments utilized as of December 31, 2024: 

Estimated fair value 
Balance sheet location Notional amount Gain Loss 

Cash flow hedge Other assets $ 50,000 $ 5,396 $ -
Cash flow hedge Other assets 50,000 5,211 -
Cash flow hedge Other assets 50,000 5,177 -
Cash flow hedge Other assets 50,000 6,213 -
Cash flow hedge Other assets 50,000 11,414 -
Cash flow hedge Other assets 50,000 10,527 -
Cash flow hedge Other assets 50,000 4,866 -
Cash flow hedge Other assets 50,000 2,188 -
Cash flow hedge Other assets 50,000 7,604 -
Cash flow hedge Other assets 50,000 6,369 -
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BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

The following table details the derivative financial instruments, the remaining maturities, and the interest 
rates being paid and received as of December 31, 2024: 

Notional Maturity Fair value 
value (years) gain/(loss) Receive Pay 

Interest rate swap $ 50,000 4.4 $ 2,188 4.47% 2.86% 
Interest rate swap 50,000 5.3 4,866 4.47% 1.92% 
Interest rate swap 50,000 6.7 7,604 4.66% 1.48% 
Interest rate swap 50,000 7.3 5,396 4.66% 2.39% 
Interest rate swap 50,000 7.5 6,369 4.47% 1.99% 
Interest rate swap 50,000 8.3 5,211 4.47% 2.47% 
Interest rate swap 50,000 8.5 5,177 4.47% 2.52% 
Interest rate swap 50,000 9.3 6,213 4.47% 2.36% 
Interest rate swap 50,000 9.8 11,414 4.47% 1.15% 
Interest rate swap 50,000 9.8 10,527 4.47% 1.38% 

Amongst all swap counterparties for the transactions noted above, the Bank holds a net $67,780 in cash 
pledged under collateral arrangements related to the interest rate swaps as of December 31, 2024, to satisfy 
the collateral requirements. 

The following table summarizes the derivative financial instrument utilized as of December 31, 2023: 

Estimated fair value 
Balance sheet location Notional amount Gain Loss 

Cash flow hedge Other assets $ 50,000 $ 4,126 $ -
Cash flow hedge Other assets 50,000 3,562 -
Cash flow hedge Other assets 50,000 3,453 -
Cash flow hedge Other assets 50,000 4,390 -
Cash flow hedge Other assets 50,000 10,053 -
Cash flow hedge Other assets 50,000 9,046 -
Cash flow hedge Other assets 50,000 4,175 -
Cash flow hedge Other assets 50,000 1,347 -
Cash flow hedge Other assets 50,000 6,878 -
Cash flow hedge Other assets 50,000 5,096 -

Continued on next page 48 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
   

   
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

      
  

 

  
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
          
            

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

The following table details the derivative financial instruments, the remaining maturities, and the interest 
rates being paid and received as of December 31, 2023: 

Notional Maturity Fair value 
value (years) gain/(loss) Receive Pay 

Interest rate swap $ 50,000 5.4 $ 1,347 5.33% 2.86% 
Interest rate swap 50,000 6.3 4,175 5.33% 1.92% 
Interest rate swap 50,000 7.7 6,878 5.46% 1.48% 
Interest rate swap 50,000 8.3 4,126 5.46% 2.39% 
Interest rate swap 50,000 8.5 5,096 5.33% 1.99% 
Interest rate swap 50,000 9.3 3,562 5.33% 2.47% 
Interest rate swap 50,000 9.5 3,453 5.33% 2.52% 
Interest rate swap 50,000 10.3 4,390 5.33% 2.36% 
Interest rate swap 50,000 10.8 10,053 5.33% 1.15% 
Interest rate swap 50,000 10.8 9,046 5.33% 1.38% 

Amongst all swap counterparties for the transactions noted above, the Bank holds a net $51,500 in cash 
pledged under collateral arrangements related to the interest rate swaps as of December 31, 2023, to satisfy 
the collateral requirements. 

Interest expense recorded on these swap transactions totaled ($15,783) and ($16,309) as of December 31, 
2024 and 2023 and is reported as a component of deposit interest expense. 
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BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

NOTE 16 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Fair value measurements are used to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities and to 
determine fair value disclosures.  Available for sale debt securities are recorded at fair value on a recurring 
basis. 

Fair Value Hierarchy 

Under ASC 820-10, assets and liabilities are grouped at fair value in three levels, based on the markets in 
which the assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value. 
These levels are: 

• Level 1 – Valuation is based upon quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. 

• Level 2 – Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, 
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, and model-
based valuation techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market. 

• Level 3 – Valuation is generated from model-based techniques that use significant assumptions not 
observable in the market.  These unobservable assumptions reflect our own estimates of 
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability.  Valuation 
techniques include use of option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar 
techniques. 

Determination of Fair Value 

Under ASC 820-10, fair values are based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. It is Bank 
policy to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when 
developing fair value measurements, in accordance with the fair value hierarchy of ASC 820-10. 

The following is a description of valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities recorded at fair 
value and for estimating fair value for financial instruments not recorded at fair value (ASC 825-10 
disclosures). 

Continued on next page 50 



 
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
     

    
  

     
     

    
     

   
 

 
 

 
      

 
 

 
    

 

 
 
 

 
 

                                    
 

 

    

                                                   
                                                                 
                                                                 
                                                                        
                                                                    

    

    

    

BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

Debt Securities Available for Sale 

Debt securities available for sale consist primarily of Federal agencies and mortgage backed securities. 
Debt securities available for sale are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value is based upon 
quoted prices, if available.  If quoted market prices are not available, fair values are measured using 
observable market prices from independent pricing models, or other model-based valuation techniques such 
as the present value of future cash flows, adjusted for the security’s credit rating, prepayment assumptions 
and other factors such as credit loss assumptions.  Level 1 securities include those traded in an active 
market; examples would include U.S. Treasury securities and Agency securities. Level 2 securities as 
defined above would include mortgage-backed securities, collateralized mortgage obligations, and state and 
political subdivision securities. 

Interest Rate Swap Agreements 

Fair values for interest rate swap agreements are based upon the amounts required to settle the contracts. 

Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis 

The tables below present the balances of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis 
as of December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

2024 

Quoted 
Prices in Significant Other 
Active Observable Significant 

Marke ts Inputs Unobservable 
Total Level 1 Level 2 Inputs      Level 3 

ASSETS 
Available-for-sale debt securities 

Mortgage-backed securities 
Agency $ 159,372 $ - $ 159,372 $ -

Collateralized mortgage obligations 
Agency 2,866,491 4,834 2,861,657 -

Agency bonds 286,590 286,590 - -
U.S. tre asurie s 889,048 889,048 - -
Municipal bonds 1,000 - 1,000 -

Interest rate swaps 64,965 - 64,965 -

Totals $ 4,267,466 $1,180,472 $ 3,086,994 $ -

LIABILITIES 
Interest rate swap $ - $ - $ - $ -

Totals $ - $ - $ - $ -
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BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

2023 

Quoted 
Prices in 

ASSETS 
Available-for-sale debt securities 

Mortgage-backed securities 
Agency 

Collateralized mortgage obligations 
Agency 

Agency bonds 
U.S. treasuries 
Municipal bonds 

Interest rate swaps 

$ 

Total 

57,074 

1,989,244 
335,090 

1,487,258 
1,000 

52,126 

Active 
Markets 
Level 1 

$ -

-
335,090 

1,487,258 
-
-

Significant Other 
Observable Inputs 

Level 2 

$ 57,074 

1,989,244 
-
-

1,000 
52,126 

Inputs

$ 

Significant 
Unobservable 

      Level 3 

-

-
-
-
-
-

Totals $ 3,921,792 $ 1,822,348 $ 2,099,444 $ -

LIABILITIES 
Interest rate swap $ - $ - $ - $ -

Totals $ - $ - $ - $ -

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis 

Under certain circumstances the Bank may make adjustments to fair value for assets and liabilities although 
they are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis. The Bank only had Level 3 financial assets 
measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, which is summarized below: 

Range 
Valuation (Weighted 

2024 2023 Technique Unobservable Input Avg.) 

Collateral Dependant Loans $11,237 $31,361 Collateral valuation Discount from market value 84% 

Foreclosed Assets $ - $ 4,223 Collateral valuation Discount from market value 92% 
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BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

NOTE 17 - ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

The Bank recognizes and includes revenues, expenses, gains and losses in net income.  Although certain 
changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available for sale securities, are 
reported as separate component of the equity section of the balance sheet, such items, along with net income, 
are components of comprehensive income. 

The changes in accumulated other comprehensive income by component for the years ended December 
31, 2024 and 2023 follows: 

Year ended December 31, 2024 

Beginning balance 

Other comprehensive income (loss) 
before reclassifications 

Amount reclassified from accumulated 
other comprehensive income 

Net current period other comprehensive 
income 

Ending balance 

Year ended December 31, 2023 

Beginning balance 

Other comprehensive income (loss) 
before reclassifications 

Amount reclassified from accumulated 
other comprehensive income 

Net current period other comprehensive 
income 

Ending balance 

Unrealized 
gain and losses 
on available-for-
sale securities 

$ (135,135) 

49,637 

-

49,637 

$ (85,498) 

Unrealized gain 
and losses on 
available-for-
sale securities 

$ (240,533) 

105,398 

-

105,398 

$ (135,135) 

Gains and 
losses on cash 

flow hedges Total 

$ 52,125 $ (83,010) 

12,840 62,477 

- -

12,840 

$ 64,965 $ 

62,477 

(20,533) 

Gains and 
losses on cash 
flow hedges Total 

$ 63,068 $ (177,465) 

(10,943) 94,455 

- -

(10,943) 

$ 52,125 $ 

94,455 

(83,010) 
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BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

NOTE 18 - SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES RELATED TO STATEMENTS OF CASH 
FLOWS 

2024 2023 

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information 
Cash payments for: 

Interest paid to customers 
Interest paid on federal funds purchased and
  securities sold under repurchase agreements 
Interest paid on short and long-term debt 

$ 179,567 

20,169 
9,048 

$ 94,256 

13,571 
23,739 

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activiti
Net change in fair value
  on debt securities available for sale 
Net change in fair value
  on interest rate swaps 
Transfer of ACL loans 

es 

49,637 

12,840 

105,398 

(10,943) 

to unfunded commitments 
Transition adjustment to undivided 

profits for ASC 326 
Foreclosed assets acquired in
  exchange for loans 
Loans provided for sale of 
foreclosed assets 

-

-

-

4,223 

14,196 

3,143 

99 

-
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BANK OF NORTH DAKOTA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 
(In Thousands) 

NOTE 19 - REVENUE RECOGNITION 

The majority of the Bank's revenues are not subject to ASC 606, including revenue generated from 
financial instruments, such as interest and dividend income, including loans and securities, as these 
activities are subject to other U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”). Revenue 
generating activities that are within the scope of ASC 606 are presented within non-interest income and 
are recognized as revenue as the Bank satisfies its obligation to the customer. Descriptions of revenue 
generating activities that are within the scope of ASC 606, which are presented in the Statements of 
Income as components of non-interest income and presented in the line item Service Fees and Other are 
as follows: 

• Gains (Losses) on Sales of Foreclosed Assets - The Bank records a gain or loss from the sale of 
foreclosed assets when control of the property transfers to the buyer, which generally occurs at 
the time of an executed deed. When the Bank finances the sale of foreclosed asset to the buyer, 
the Bank assesses whether the buyer is committed to perform their obligations under the contract 
and whether collectability of the transaction price is probable. Once these criteria are met, the 
foreclosed asset is derecognized and the gain or loss on sale is recorded upon the transfer of 
control of the property to the buyer. In determining the gain or loss on the sale, the Bank adjusts 
the transaction price and related gain (loss) on sale if a significant financing component is 
present. 

• Service Fees and Other Charges - The Bank provides numerous services for corresponding 
financial institutions and North Dakota state agencies that it earns fees and service charges from. 
Fees and service charges from ACH, wires, cash services, safe keeping, servicing of state funds, 
paying agent, trustee and escrow represent general service fees for monthly and activity-or-
transaction-based fees and consist of transaction-based revenue, time-based revenue (service 
period), item-based revenue or some other individual attribute-based revenue. Revenue is 
recognized when the performance obligation is satisfied, which is generally daily for when a 
transaction has been completed (such as a wire transfer). Payment for such performance 
obligations are typically received at the time the performance obligations are satisfied. 

NOTE 20 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

In normal course of business the Bank repositioned approximately $500 million of its securities portfolio 
in January 2025. The Bank sold $495 million of low yielding, short duration securities at a loss of $7.49 
million in January. The Bank reinvested $484 million back into its security portfolio at higher yields as 
of January 17, 2025. The Bank does not expect this to have a material impact on its 2025 financial 
statement. 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through February 4, 2025, which is the date these financial 
statements were available to be issued. 
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